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INDEPENDENT AUINTOR’S REPORT
T0 THE SHAREHOLDERS OF PROCREINT BANK 84

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
ProCredit Bank SA (the “Bank™) as at 31 December 2017, and of its financial performance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
as adopted by the European Union (IFRS) and Mational Bank of Romania Order 27/2010, as
subsequently amended ("NBR Order 27/20107).

Our opinion is consistent with our additional report to the Andit Committee.
What we have audited

The Bank's financial statements, set out on pages 1 1o 60, comprise;

- the statement of profit or loss for the financial year ended 31 December 2o17;

. the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for the vear then ended;
. the statement of financial position as of that date;

. the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

. the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

. the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies.

The financial statements as at 31 December 2o17 are identified as follows:

. Total equity and reserves: RON 195,538 thousand;
. Net profit for the vear: RON 464 thousand.
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The Bank's registered office is in Bucharest, str. Buzesti, nr. 62-64, et.1, 2 8i 4, distriet 1, Romania
and the Bank's nunigue fiscal registration code is RO14622104.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Anditing (18As), Regulation
EU No 537/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council (“the Regulation”) and Law

162/ 2017 (“the Law"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We helieve that the andit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Bank in aceordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Aceountants’ Code of Ethies for Professional Accountants (TESBA Code) and the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our andit of the financial statements in Romania, including the
Regulation and the Law. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and TESBA Code,

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we declare that non-audit services that we have provided to
the Bank are in accordance with the applicable law and regulations in Romania and that we have
not provided non-audit services that are prohibited under Article 5(1) of the EU Regulation no.

537/2014.

The fees for non-audit services that we have provided to the Bank, in the period from
1Jannary 2017 to 91 December 2017, are disclosed in Note 32 to the financial statements.

Our audit approach

BON 2 400 thousand

Motorimligi

K sy
LR ETS

® Impairment of loans and advances to customers
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As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material
misstatement in the financial statements. In particular, we considered where Management made
subjective judgements; for example, in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved
making assumptions and considering future events that are inherently uncertain, As in all our
audits, we also addressed the risk of management override of internal controls, inclading among
other matters, consideration of whether there was evidence of bias that represented a risk of
material misstatement due to frand.

We tailored the scope of our audit in order to perform sufficient work to enable us to provide an
opinion on the financial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the Bank, the
accounting processes and controls, and the industry in which the Bank operates.

The seape of our andit was influenced by our application of materiality. An andit is designed to
obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
Misstatements may arise due to fraud or error. They are considered material if individually or in
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of the financial statements.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined certain quantitative thresholds for
materiality, including the overall materiality for the financial statements as a whole as set out in the
table below. These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of
our andit and the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and to evaluate the effect of
misstatements, both individually and in aggregate on the financial statements as a whole.

Overall materiality RON 2,400 thousand

How we determined it Approximately 3% of the Interest and Commission ineome
{“Core income™) of the Bank from 2o17.

Rationale for the Core income of the Bank , in our view, is one of the

materiality benchmark benchmarks against which the performance of the Bank is

applied most commonly measured by its stakeholders, and itisa

generally accepted benchmark. We chose 3%, which in our
experience is an acceptable quantitative materiality threshold
for this benchmark.
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We agreed with the Andit Committee we would report to them misstatements identified during our
audit above RON 120 thonsand as well as misstatements below that amount that, in our view,

warranted reporting for qualitative reasons,

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our andit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audii maiter

How our sudit addressed the key audit
malter

Impairment of loans and advances to
customers

We focused on this area becanse management
makes significant subjective judgements over
both, the timing of recognition of impairment
losses and the estimation of the size of such
impairment, which is a complex area of
aceounting,

The basis of the provision for impairment for
loans and advances to customers is deseribwed
in the significant accounting policies note. An
assessment of the provision for impairment for
loans and advances to customers is performed
individually for loans that are considered
gignificant and have impairment triggers, and
collectively for other loans, with the key
assumptions being the probability of an
aceount falling into arrears and subsequently
defaulting, and the amount that is likely to be
recovered from the debtor in the event of such
default. Statistical models are used for the
assessment of the collective impairment for
different categories of loans. The categories
afe determined based on the grouping of loans
with similar credit risk characteristics.
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We assessed the impairment methodology for
compliance with IAS 39 “Financial instruments:
classification and measurement”,

We assessed and tested on a sample hagis the
design and operating effectiveness of controls over
impairment data and calculations.

For the loans individually assessed, the controls
included those used by management bo ensure
that the list of loans assessed individually is
appropriate and up to date and, in case of
collectively assessed loans, that the key inputs to
the statistical models are regularly updated. We
also tested that client repavments are properly
allocated to the correct loans balances and that
days past due are accurately calculated by the
Bank's system.

With respect to collaterals we also assessed and
tested controls to ensure that they are properly
recorded, that the collateral valuation is regularly
assessed by qualified valuators and the Bank
applies proper haireuts to the market value of
collaterals in respect of timing and cost related to
the sale of this items.
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Key nudit matter How our sudit addressed the key andit

maiter

See Mote g = “Allowance for losses on loans In addition, we tested on a sample basis i)

and advances and impairment of available for  collateral valustions as per operational system
sale financial assets”, pages 14-16 and Note 55  versus valuation reports prepared by the Bank's
— Credit Risk, pages 36-42, to the financial external valuation experts, and ii) individual
statements. impairment assessments performed by the Bank.

With respect to the collective impairment
provision we verified the re-assessment of key
parameters made by management, validated
underlving data, re-calculated these parameters
which and then recomputed the collective
provision for the entire portfolio.

At the end of the procedures detailed above we
have not identified significant differences from the
results of the computation performed by the
Bank's Management.

Reporting on other information including the Administrators' Report

The Administrators are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of other information.
The other information comprises the Administrators’ Report, but does not include the financial
statements and onr auditor's report thereon, 'We obtained these other information prior to the date
of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information, including the
Administrators’ Beport,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing 2o, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

With respect to the Administrators” Report, we read it and we report whether this was prepared in
all material respects, in accordance with NBR Order 27/2010 articles 11 - 14.
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Based on the work undertaken in the course of our audit, in our opinion:

. the information given in the Administrators’ Report for the financial vear for which the
financial slatements are prepared is consistent with the Anancial statements;
® the Administrators’ BEeport has been prepared in accordance with NBE Ocder 27/2010

articles 11 = 14.

In addition, in light of the knowledge and understanding of the Bank and its environment ohtained
in the course of the audit, we are required to report if we have identified material misstatements in
the Administrators’ Report. 'We have nothing to report in this respect.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial
statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of the finaneial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordanee with IFES as adopted by EU and the NBR Order 27/2010, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of acconnting unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank’s financial reporting
process,

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the Minancial statements

Dur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the inancial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an andit conduocted in accordance with 15As will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with [SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism thronghout the audit. We alao:
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. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design andit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies vsed and the reasonableness of
aceounting estimates and related disclosures made by management,

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, hased on the andit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubl on the Bank’s ability to
continue as a going concern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such dizclosures are inadeguate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern,

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our andit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters

that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key andit matters. We describe these matters in our anditor's report unless law or

7of B

This version of the sccompanying documents is a trunslation from the onginal, which was prepared in Romanian. AR
poasible care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an scourate representation of the odginal. However, in all
matters of interprefation of information, views ar opinions, the original language version of our report takes precedeno:
over this translatien.



regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circomstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report becanse the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

We were appointed as auditors of the Bank in the General Shareholder meeting on 12 July 2016 to
aundit the financial statements of ProCredit Bank SA for the financial vear ended 31 December 2o17.
The total period of uninterrupted engagement is of one vear covering financial vear ended at 31
December 2017,

Refer to the original
signed Romanian version

Florin Deaconescu
Statutory anditor registered with
the Chamber of Financial Auditors of Romania under no 1524/13 noiembrie 2003

Om behalf of

ProcewaterhouseCoopers Audit SEL

Barbu Vacarescu Street, no. 301-311, Bucuresti

Audit firm registered with

the Chamber of Finaneial Auditors of Eomania under no 6/25 June 20401

Bucharest, 27 April 208
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Statement of Profit or Loss
1.4-31.12. 1.1-31.12.
in LEI Note 2017 2016
I.nt-eieust and similar income 66,418, 599 92,893 701
Interest and similar expansas N -11,441.943 -18,772 026
Met interest income (20, 26) 54,876,656 73,121,675
Allowance for impairment losses on loans and advances {27) 5,834,980 538,073
Met interast income after allowances 8. 27) 60,811,645 72,482,602
Fee and commission income 12,245 958 15,832,220
Fee and commission expanses -4,027, 773 -5,851,058
Net fee and commission income (21, 28) 8,222,186 8,981,162
Met result from foreign exchange transactions (29 4 287,702 4,789 109
Met result from available-for-sale financial assets {30) 20,098 24,403
Operating income 73,330,628 87,287,276
Fersonnel expanses (32} -26,381 662 -31,671,233
Administralive expenses [32) =32, 186,085 26,504,198
Operating lease expenses -6, 381,843 -8,7559,080
[Depreciation and amorisation (39, 40) -5, 862175 -8,572,004
Oither operating incomea 131 7,607,816 1,580,763
Other oparating expense {31) -8,132, 822 -7.885,017
Operating expenses -72,336,681 -81,621,679
_Operating result 993,947 5,665,507
Incoma tax (expensas) ncome (14, 331 -528.547 -838.950
Profit/Loss for the year 464,400 4,726,847
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
1.1-31.12. 1.1-31.12.
inLEl ‘Note 2017 20186
Profit for the year 464,400 4,726,647
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss = 3
Change in revaluation reserve from available-for-sale financial
assels 15,653 13,526
Change in deferred tax on revaluation reserve from available for
_&ale assets -2,505 -2,164
_Other n-nmprahanawe income for ma year, net uftax 13,1459 11,362 —
“Total comprehensive income for the year 477,549 4,738,009

The Statement of profit or koss and other comprehensive income |2 1o be read in canjunction with the notes to and forming
part of the financial statemenis set oul on pages & to 58.

The financial statements were reviewed and authorized for issue by the Board of Administration on 23 April 2018 and
were signed on its behalf by
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Statement of Financial Position
in LEI Az at 31 December
Assels Mote 2017 2016
Cash and cash equivalents (7, 34} 193,314 659 161,982 624
Loans and advances to banks (8, 35) 33,6868 553 B2 723,222
Available-for-sale financial azzels {9, 36) 51,914,070 B5, 8892 086
Loans and advances (o customers (8, 37) 1,032,119.687 1,058,522, 504
Allowance for losses on loans and advances to cusiomers {9, 38) =36, 119,617 -00,599, 554
Property, plant and equipment (11, 40) 16,367 668 18,766, 004
Intangible assets (10, 39} 4,153,356 6,014,652
Deferrad tax assets (14, 42) 3,191,853 3,723,605
Other financial assets (43) 2,524 T3 3,654,350
Cther non-financial assets {43} B,802 240 9,847 774
Current tax assets (43) 3,197,006 3,162,175
Total assets 1,311,663,906 1,383,709,032
Liabilities
Liabilitias to banks (15, 44) 239,847 857 128,121,992
Liabilises to customars (15, 45) 705,010,210 839,706,432
Liabilsas o international financial institutions {45) 167 273 68T 211,851 422
Other llabiities {48) 3,458 526 5,437 405
Provizions (16, 47) 405625 3,083,687
Subordinated debt B {18, 48} = 39,747 B892
Total llabilities 1,116,025,905 1,228,028,830
Equity = — =
Share capital (19, 50) 199,051,971 159,681,721
Share premium (19, 50) 1,273,775 1,273,775
Legal reserve {19, 50) 3,372,009 3,322,312
Accumulated loss -8,161,.474 -B,576,178
Rewveluation resarve from available-for-sale financial
instruments : 8280 ___-21,428
Total equity 196,638,001 155,680,202
Total equity and liabilities 1,311,563,906  1,383,709,032

The statement of financial position is o be read in conjunction with the notes o and forming part of the fimancial statements
sat out on pages & to 58,

The financial statements were reviewed and authorized for issue by the Board of Administration on 23 April 2018 and
ware signed on ils behalf by;

Mariana Dimitrova Patkova Andreea Ichim
DCeputy | Manager T . Head of Finance Dep t
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Statement of Changes in Equity

in LEI Attributable to equity holders of the Bank
Share Shara Legal Accumulated Revaluation Total
capital pramium FEEEMVE logs regerve
AFS

Balance at January 1, 2017 158,681,721 1,273,776 3,322 312 8,576,178 ~21,428 165,680,202
Prafil of the year 2017 - - - 484 400 - 454,400
Revaluation of &l securities = " . - 13,148 13,148
Crther compréhensve income - - - = - -
Tolal comprehensive income of
the year 2047 - - . 454, 404 13,148 47T 549
Distributed dividends from profit
20148 - - . -
Transfer o kegal resens = - 49 897 495687 - -
Share Capital incresse 39,380250 - - - 35 380,260
Trargactiang with sharehalders
recorded diractly in equity 35,380.250 - - - - 3%,380,250

“Balance at December 31, 2017 189,061,871 1,273,775 3,372,009 -8.161.474 8279 185,538,001
Balance at January 1, 2016 159,881,721 1,273,775 3,039,032 13,019,544 32,790 150,942,194
Profit of the year 2016 . . - 4, T0G.64T - & T266547
Revaluation of als securnities E: . 4 - 11,382 11,382
CHher comprenensive incoma - - - y "
Total comprehensive incame of
the year 2018 - - - 4,726,647 11,362 4,738 OB
Distributed divdends from gprafil
2015 - - - . -
Transher o kegal resene - . 283,280 283280 - =
Share Capital increase - - - = -
Transactione with shareholders
recoeded directly in equity - - - - -
Balance at December 31, 2016 158,681,721 1,273,776 3322312 8,578,178 21,428 155,660,202

The statement of changes in equity is to be read in conjunction with the notes to and forming part of the financsal
statements set out on pages 8 to 58,
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Cash Flow Statement

("= ProCredit Bank
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- in LEI Mota  1.4.-3.12.2007 1.1.-31.12.2016
Met profit after tax 464,400 4,726 64T
= Cash flows from operating activities '
Adjustiments for;
Allowance for impairment losses on loans and advances -3,704 867 3,321,633
- Depreciation and amortisation 5,852 174 8,572,905
Other provisions -2,658 062 2,540,508
Met result from fixed assets 7,369,260 6,636,503
=t Dividends Income -20 055 -24 403
Met income from recoveres from write-off loans -2, 128 488 -2 685,351
Other {includirg FX) 2,101,067 -2,984,033
Income tax expense/ravancs 528,547 G35 950
Operating profit before changes in aperating assets and liabilities 7,795,936 21,143,560
= Change in minimum compulsary reserve 16,771,150 22 643,399
Change in loans and advances to customers 17,755,826 74,472,210
Changa in cther assets 729,619 2,351,788
Change in T-bills 15,653 13 528
Change in deposit from banks 65,593 042 11316 873
Change in deposits from customers 133,353,137 451,277,005
~ Change in clher liabilities 6,415,251 -A59,722
_H'-l cash used in operating activities -17,875,760 47,170,864
- Cash flows from investing activities
Dividends received 29,096 24,403
Purchase of property, plant and equipment / intagible assats -8,047,003 15,171,043
- Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 105,200 303,405
Purchasa of AFS -83 6586, 061 -85,865 084
Proceeds from sale of AFS 117,633 5683 L]
1y “Net cash used in investing activities 25,064,895 100,708,318
Proceeds from borrowings 91,432 985 35,501,502
Repayment of borrowing -09,543 605 -39.445 604
z Interest paid -12,794,180 -22,756,050
Cash flow from ﬁnan:_I_.ng activities _ 8,110,620 -3,943,912
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents al 31 December previous year 142,631,117 186,855 581
Met increase/(decraase) in cash and cash equivalants -521,484 -46. 224 484
- Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December [34},' 141,709 633 142,631,117
Cash flows from operating activities include:
Interest received 61,214 817 104,075,203
61,214,817 104,075,203
il Andreea Ichim
= » — ~. If' Head af Finan-Ea rmeent
R |



Motes to the Financial Statements

A,

1)
2)
3

B.

4)
5
6)
7
8

g)

10)
11)
12)
13)
14)
15)
16)
17)
18)
19)
20)
21)
22)
23)
24)
25)

C.

26)
27}
28)
29)
30)
31)
32)
33)

D.

34)
35

Basis of Preparation

{ ProCredit Bank
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Compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards as endorsed by the Evuropean Union

Use of estimates and judgements
Accounting developments

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Measurament basis

Financial asseis

Foreign currency translation

Cash and cash equivalents

Loans and advances fo banks/customers

Allowance for losses on loans and advances and impairment of avallable-for-sale financial azsels

intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment

Impairment of non-financial assets

Leases

Income tax

Liahilities to banks and cusiomers
Provisions

Post-employment benefits and other employes benefits
Subordinated delt

Share capital

Interest income and expense

Fes and commission income and expenses
Dividends

Offseatting

Amortised cost measurement

Fair valua measurement

Notas to the Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

MNet interest income

Allowance for impairment losses on loans and advances
Net fee and commission income

Net result from foreign exchange transactions

Net result from avallable-for-sale financial assets

MNet other operating expense

Personnel and adminisirative axpenses

Income fax axpenses/inconme

Notes to the Statement of Financial Position

Cash and cash egquivalents
Loans and advances fo banks




36)
a7
38)
39)
40)
41)
42)
43)
44)
45)
46)
47)
48)
43)
50}
51)
52)

Available-for-safe financial assets
Loans and advances fo custamers
Allowance for losses on loans and advances

Intangible assels

FProperty, plant and eqguipment
Operating lease commitments
Income faxes

Effective tax reconciliation

Other assets

Liabilities to banks

Liabilities to cusfomers

Liabilitles to infernational financial institutions
Provisions

Other financial liabilities

Liabilitles from fnancing activities
Subordinated debt

Share capital

E. Risk Management

33)
54)
55)
56)
57)
58]
5a)
By
1)

F.
&2}
&3}
&4)
65)
&)
87)
&3}
&9}

Management of the overall Bank risk profile
Management of individusal risks

Credit risk

Financial risk

Operational risk

Reputational risk

Compliance Risk

Business Risk (including strategic risk)
Organization of the risk management function

Additional Mofes

Fair value of financial instrumants
Contingent labilities and commitmenis
Related party transactions
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Motes to the Financial Statements

A, Basis of Preparation

1) Eu:rxpliance with International Financial Reporting Standards as endorsed by the European
mion

ProCredit Bank S.A (‘the Bank” or “ProCredit’) prepares its financial statements according to International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Unien (EU).

These financial statements of the Bank for the fiscal year 2017 ware approved by General Shareholders Assembly on 27
April 2018, reviewed and authorized for issue by the Board of Administration on 23 Apdil 2018 and were signed on its
behalf by Mariana Dimitrova Petkova as Depuly General Manager and by Andreaa lchim as Head of Finance Depariment. -

These financial stalements were prepared on the going concem assumption.
2) Use of estimates and judgements

The Bank’s financial reporting and its financial result are influenced by accounting policies, assumptions, estimates, and
managemeant judgement which necessarily have lo be made in the course of preparation of the financial statements

All estimates and assumptions are in conformity with IFRS and are best estimates undertaken in accordance with the
applicable standard, Estimates and judgements are evaluated on a continuous basis, and are based on past experience
and other factors, including expectations with regard to future events and are considered appropriate under the given
circumstances, Revisions fo estimates are racognized prospectively

Accounting policies and management's judgments for certain items are especially critical for the Bank's resulls and
financial situation due to their materiality in amount This applies to the following positions:

fa) Impairment of credif exposures

To determine the bank-wide rates to be applied for collective loan loss provisioning, the Bank performed an evaluation
af the quality of the loan portfolio, taking into account historical loss experiences. This migration analysis is based on
statistical data from 2010 up to and including 2017 and therefore it reflects both, average losses during 8 pericd of
constant growth and favourable economic environments as well the impact of the global recession

To datermine 1otal allowances for impairment of financial assets that are evaluated individually for impairment. the Bank
uses best estimates of the present value of the cash flows that are expected to be received. In estimating these cash
flows, management makes judgemeants about a deblor's financial situation and the nat realisable value of any underlying
collateral. Further information on tha Bank's accounting policy on loan loss provisioning can be found in note (3) and note
155)

(b] Recognition and valuation of deferred fax assels

The Bank recognises deferred lax assels only 1o the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which the lax-reducing effects can be utilised (for the Bank's accounting policy on income taxes see note (14)). The profit
projection is based on the latest business planning as approved by the Board of Administration of the Bank and therafore
necessarily and appropriately reflects management's view of future business prospects. key assumptions for 2018
include a net increase in total loan portafolio with 18%, while on liabilities side, the customer funds are planned to increasa
with 22% The fiscal loss of the Bank is estimated to be coversd with the profit from the tax planning peried of the
bankithree years). For details of the recognised amounts saa notes (33) and (42).

(o} Functional and presentation currency
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All amaounts are presented in LEL unless otherwise stated. For computational reasons, the figures in the tables may
exhibit rounding differances of £ one unit (LEl, EUR, %, =tc).

The fiscal vear of the Bank is the calendar year,
{d) Provisions

A provision is recognized if, s a result of a past event, the Bank has a ;lasent legal or constructive obligation thal can
ba eslimated, and it is probable thet an cutflow of economic benefits will be reqguired 1o seille the obligation. Provisions
are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the iime value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the hability.

fe} Liligation

In the grdinary course of business, the Bank iz routinely defendant in, or parties to a number of pending and threatened
legal actions and preceedings, incleding actions brought on behalf of various classes of claimants. In view of the inherent
difficulty of predicting the cutcome of such matters, the Bank cannot state what the eventual outcome of such matters will
be.

71 Determination of fair values

Determination of fair value for both financial instrumenls carried at fair value in the financial statements and financial
instruments carried at amortized cast and for which the fair value is disclosed encompasses significant judgements and
uncertainties relatad to the currant market conditions. For more information on determination of fair values, please refer
to note 25 and &0

3) Accounting developments

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are nol yet effective for the year endad 31
December 2017, and have not been applied in preparing thesa financial statements,

Standards adopted by the European Union
{al IFRS 9 Financlal insfruments (effeclive date: annual pericds starting from January 1, 2018)

This standard replaces the provisions of IAS 39 Financial instruments: recognition and evaluation” regarding the
classification and assessment of financial assels.

Financial assets shall be classified by using one of two evaluation methods: at amortized cost and at fair value. A financial
asset can be evaluated at amortized cost provided that the two following conditions are observed:. assels must be held
within the business model of the company, the cbjective being the management based on contractual return and cash
flows at the dates specified according to the conftractual terms must be represented only by principal and interest
Subsequent profit or loss from the value adjustments of assets measured st fair value are reflected in the income
statement, excepting invasimants in capital instruments not held for trading. for which the standard allows the fair value
measurement upon the initial recognition, the subsequent value modifications being recognized undear the comprehensive
income.

Incurred loss model from |AS 39 is replaced by expected loss model, Also, disclosure requirements are substantial
The standard introduces new requirements on classification and evaluation, depreciation and hedge accounting.
IFRS 9 is effective starting 2018 January 1. bringing major changes focusing on three areas:

- Classification and measurement of financial assets,

- Impairmant;
- Hedge acoounting.
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Classification and measurement of financial assets

The objective of the new way of classification and measurement: simplification by replacing the four categories of financaal
assets coverad by IAS 38 respectively; essets at fair value through P&L, loans and receivables, HTM - assets held until
maturity and AFS - available-for-sale with three new categories: assets measured at amortized cost, assets at fair value
through P&L and assets valued at fair value through capital accounts.
Frinciples of classification of assets:

« |AS 30 Classification is based on the intention of keeping the assats to maturity or trading intent

- IFRS 9: classification Is done based on a complex documentation aboul:

- Idantify business model;

- Identify the characteristics of cash flow generated by each financial assel

Impairment of assets

Conceplual principles:

IAS 35

Coverage with adjustments for impairment losses as well as those produced but unidentified, the standard pronibits the
establishment of allowances for future losses;

Dividing assets inta bwe categories in order to detarmine the impairment:
- performing assets, with 12 month expected credit [osses:
- impaired assets with lifetime expected cradil [osses.
IFRS & -
- The adjustments are made for impairment losses and for fulure estimated losses;
- Dividing assets info three categories in order to determine the mpaimment
- not impaired assets (stage 1) with 12 month expected credi loss,
- not impaired assets with & significant increase in credit risk (stage 2), with lifelime expected credit
losses,
- impaired assets (stage 3) with lifetime axpected credit losses.

Starting 1* of January 2018, the Bank will implement IFRS 9, the new accounting standard for financial instruments. We
expect that IFRS 9 implementation will generate an increase of loan loss allowances af approximate 4.2 mio LEl, as a
result of introduction of the new credit portfolic depreciation model based on expected losses, ProCradit Bank does nol
intend to restate comparative financial statements of the year 2017 following the entry inta farce of the new accounting -
standard IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments”,

Standards that have not been adopted by the European Union

(a) IFRS 15 — Revenue from Canlracts with Customers (Effsctive for annual periods beginning an or after Januany
2018, 1)

Issued on May 28, 2014 the standard replaces 1AS 11, A5 18 IFRIC 13, IFRIC 15, IFRIC 18 and SIC — 31. The standard

is applicable to contracts with customers, other than insurance, financial instruments, leasing,

This standard prescribes a single model for the analysis of customer contracts and lwo approaches for revenue
recognition - at a specific moment in fime or during the contract, depending on the time of fulfiling the obligation under
the contract.

The Bank performed an assessment of these amendments and the consideras the they will have a low impact on the -
individual financial statemeants as most contracts with customers are subject to other standards.

IFRS 15 had no significant impact in both financial statements of 2016 and 2017,
{b) IFRS 16 - Leases (Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 2018, 1)

IFRS 16 “Leases” will have an impact on the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases. The overall
impact of the standard has not being yet assessad by the Bank -
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fol IFRIC interpretation 22 - Foredgn Currency Trahsactions and Advance Consideralion (Efective for annual periods
beginning o or affer January 2078,1)
The Bank does not expect that the interpretation will have a material impact on the financial staterment as the Bank.

fd} Amendments to IAS 40 — Transfers of Investment Property (Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after Jahvary 2078,1)

The Bank dogs not expect that the interpretation will have a malerial impact on the financial staterment as the Bank,

There was no early adoption of any standards, amendments and interpretations not vel effective.
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B. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are sel cut below, These policies
were consistently applied to all the vears presented, unless otherwize staled.

4) Measurement basis

These financial statements were prepared under the amartised cost model, unless IFRS require recognition al fair value. —
Financial instruments measured at fair value for accounting purposes on an on-going basis include all instruments
classified as available-for-sale. The measurement echniques applied to the balance sheel positions are specified in the
eccouniing palicias ksted below,

§) Financial assets

The Bank classifies its financial assets in the following categories: loans and receivables, and available-for-gale financial _
assats. The bank holds no held-ta-maturity instruments and no instruments carried at fair value through profit and loss.
Management determines the classification of financial assets at initial recognition

{a) Loans and receivables -

Loans and receivables are non-darivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
aclive market. They arise when the bank provides money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no intention of _
trading the recevabla.

Loans and recaivables are initially recognised at fair value including transaction costs. subsequently they are measured

at amertised cost using the effective interest method. At each balance sheet date and whenever thers is evidence of —
potential impairment, the Bank assesses the amount of allowance for impairment of its loans and receivables. Their
carrying amount may be reduced as a conseguence through the use of an allowance account {see note ¥ on the
accounting pelicy for impairment of credit exposures, and notes (27), (38), and (55) for detads regarding irrpairment of
credit exposures). If the amount of the impairmeant loss decreases, the impairment allowance 15 reduced accordingly, and
the amount of the reduction is recognised in the income staterment. The uppar limit on the reduction of the impairmeant 15
agual to the amortised costs which would have been calculated at the valuation date if there had not been any irmpairrrent

Loans are racognised when the principal is disbursed to the borrowers. Loans and receivables are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assats have expired or when the Bank has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of cwnership

(b} Awvaillable-for-gale financial assels

Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-darivative financial assets that are designated as available for sale or
are nol classified as: (a) logns and recaivables, (b) held-to-maturity invesiments or (c) financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss.

AL initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are recorded at fair value including lransaction cosis. -
Subsequently they are carried at fair value, The fair values reported are sither observable market prices in active markels

or values calculated with a valuation technique based on currently cbservable market data. For very shart-term financial
assets it is assumed that the fair value is best reflectad by the transaction price itsalf. Gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets are recognised directly in equity in other comprehensive income
in the position “revaluation reserve from available-for-sale financial assets”, until the financial assel is derecognised or
impaired (for details on impairment, see nate (9)). Al this time, the cumulstive gain or loss previously recognisad in ety

in other comprehensive income s recognised in profit or loss as “gains and losses from available-for-sale financial _
assels” Interest is calculated using the effective interest rate mathod and foreign currency gains and losses on manetary
assels classified as available-for-sale are recognised in the income statement. Dividends on available-for-sale equity
instruments are recognised in the income statemeant whan the entity's right to receive the payment is established,
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Purchases and sales of available-for-sale financial assets are recorded on the frade date, The available-for-sale firancial
assals are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assels hava expired or when the bank
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

6) Foreign currency translation
{a} Functional and presentation currency

ltemns included in these financlal statements presented in LEI, which is the functional currency of the Bank.
(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currancy transaclions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the sattlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assels and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the income statamant.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are franslated with the closing rate as of the reporting date. In the cese
of changes in the fair value of monetary assets denominated in foreign currency classified as available for sala, a
distincticn is made batween transtation differences resulting from changes in amortised cost of the security and other
changes in the carrying amount of the security. Conversion differences related to changes in the amortised cost are
recognised in profit or loss, while other changes in the carrying amount are recognised in equity.

Mon-monetary tams measured at historical cost denominated in foreign currency are translated with the axchange rate
as al the date of initial recognition.

The reporting exchange rates and average rales for the perod used in the balance sheet and the income statement
are listed in section (68) of these noles.

T} Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the balance sheat, cash and cash equivalents includes cash, cash balances in ATM, balances with
less than three months' maturity from the date of scquisition when eligible for discounting with central banks, other
maney market instrumants that are highly liquid and readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk
of changes in value, and bills of exchange and cther bills eligible for discounting with central banks.

Generally, all cash and cash aquivalent items are recognised at their nominal value.

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash balances on hand, unrestricted
balances held at central bank, and cash batances in ATM, &nd current accounts with banks and placements with other
banks with less than 90 days original maturity and are used by the Bank in the management of its short-term
commitments.

8) Loans and advances to banks/customers
The amounts reported under receivables from customers consist mainly of loans and advances issued

In addition to cvernight and lerm deposits, the amounts reported under receivables from banks include current account
balances.

All loans and receivables from banks as well ag leans and receivables from customers fall under the calegory “loans and
receivables” and are camied at amorised cost, using the effective interest method. Amortised premiums and discounts
are accounted for, over the respective tarms in the income statement under net interest income. Impairment of loans is
recognised in saparale allowance accounts (3ee note (9))

For the purposes of the cash flow stalement, claims to banks with & remaining maturity of lass than three months from
the date of acquisition are recognised under cash and cash equivalents (see note (34)).

f’ﬁiﬁx i3
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9) Allowance for losses on loans and advances and impairment of available-for-sale financial
assets

fal Assets carried af amortised cost — loans and advances
= | i i nd

The Bank assesses at each balance sheet date whether thers is chjeclive evidence that a financial asset or a group of
fmancial assets s impaired. If there 5 objective evidence that impairment of a credit exposure or & portfolio of credit
exposures has occurred which influences the fulure cash flow of the financial asset(s), the respective losses ane
mmmadiately recognised. Depending on the size of the credit exposure, such losses are either calculated on an individual
credit exposure basis or are collectively assessed for a portfolio of credit exposures. The carrying amount of the loan &=
reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement,
Losses from expected future evenls are nol recognised

* Individually assessed loans and advances

Credit exposures are considered individually significant if they exceed EUR 30.000. For such credil exposures, it is -

assassad whather objective evidence of impairment exists, i.e, any factors which might influance the customer's ability

o fulfil his mntra:tual payment chligations towards the bank:
dalinguencies in contractual payments of interest or principal, reflected in more than 30 days debt
SETVice;
dabtor's significant financial difficulties, caused either by certain factors specific to their activity, or certain
rmajor changes of the economic environment in which they operate- the main assessment tool is dabtor's
financial performance category. The debltor's financial performance means “the reflection of the
economic potential and financial soundness of an entity, obtained based on the analysis of a sel of
guantitative and gualitative factors®, according to the M.B.R. Regulation no.16M12.12.2012, with its
subsequent amendments and additions. The deblor's financial performance is assigned o oneg of the
categonas A o E (A = the best category and E - the worsi category). A credit exposure related o a
debtor whose financial performance category belongs to the category “D” or “E" is considered to display
signs of mpairmant. The debtor's financial performance category is determined according to the Bank's
procedures on koan and placement classification and the determination and use of specific prudential
provigions. Anothar instrument which s monitored in order to dentify debtor's significant financial
difficulties is the client risk classification category determined for all small and madium cradit exposuras
gccording to the Bank's Procedure for credit risk classification for Small and Medium credit exposures,
The credit risk classification is an instrument sustaining the assessmant of the creditworthiness for
granting new credit exposures and ongaing credit risk assessment process associated to outstanding
credit exposures. The model containg a set of gualtative and quantiiative factors besed on the
information obtained / determined during the client's financial analysis or monitoring process. The
deblors are assigned to one of the categones 1 to 8 { 1 = the best category and & - the worst categorny),
In this sense, all credit exposures classified in client risk category 8 is considered a sign of impairmant,

- breach of covenants or conditions, wnless the bank decides to waive or modify the covenant or

canditions;
initiation of bankruptcy proceaedings;
initigtion of foreclosure procadures by the Bank,
observable data indicating that there is & measurable decrease in the estmated future cash flows from
a group of financial assats since the initial recognition of those assets. although the decrease cannot yet
be identified with the individual financial agsets n the group,
the bank, for either aconomic or legal reasons related to the deblor's significant financial difficulties,
granis them a concession that they would not enjoy otherwise (e.g. restructuring operation by the
reduction of interest rate or by offering a grace period or maratorium more than three, respectively
twelve months {agricultural and other saasonal businesses) ).

An individual sssessment can also be carrad out in cases of credit exposure below EUR 30,000 if they show signs of

impairment, Additionally, the aggregate exposure fo the client and the realisable value of collateral hald are taken into
account when deciding on the allowance for impairrmanl

14
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If there is chijective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss = measured as he
difference babwean the assels’s carrying amount and the present value of itz estimated fulure cash flows discounted at
the financial assel's original effective interesi rate (specific impairment). If & credit exposure has a variable inferast rate,
the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the contract.

The calculaton of the present valee of the astimated future cash flows of 3 collateralised financial asset reflects the cash
flowes: that may result from foreclosure, less costs for abtaining end selling the collateral.

There are wo cases in which credil exposures are collectively assessed for impairment:

= individually insignificant credit exposures that show objective evidence of impairmant;

- groups of credit exposures which do not show signs of impairment, in order to cover all losses which have already
baen mourred bul not detected on an individual credit exposure basis.

Far the purposes of the evaluation of impairment of individually insignificant credit exposuras, the credit exposuras are
grouped on the basis of similar credit risk characteristics, i.e. according to the number of days they are in armears and on
the restructured’non-restructured status, single or multiple restructuring, with insclvency procedures stared or not,
Arrears of 30 or more days are considered to be a sign of impairment. This characteristic is relevant for the estimation of
future cash flows for the so defined groups of such assets, based on hisiorical loss experiences with loans that showed
similar characienstics,

The collective assessment of impairment for individually ingignificant credit expogures ("lump-sum impairment”} and for
unimpaired credit exposures (“portfolio-based impairment”) belonging to a group of financial assets is based on a
quantitative analysis of historical defaull rates for loan portfolios with similar risk charactenstics (migration analysis). After
a qualitative analysiz of this statistical data, management prescribed appropriate rates as the basis for porfolic-based
impairment allowances

Future cash flows in a group of financial assels thal are collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the basis
of the confraciual cash flows of the assels in the group and historical loss experience for assels with credit nisk
characteristics similar to thosa in the group. Historical loss exparience is adjusted on the basis of current observable data
to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the period on which the historical loss experience is based
and io remove the effects of conditions in the historcal pericd that do not exist currenily. The methodolegy and
assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewad regulady by the Bank to reduce any differences between
loss estimates and actual loss exparience.

Reversal of imparment

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectivaly to
an event occurring after the impairmant was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by
adjusting the allowance accounl The amount of the reversal is recognised in the income statement.

Winting off Icans and advances

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off ageinst the related allowance for loan impairment. Such loans are writtan off
after all the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of the loss has been determined. Subsequent
recoveras of amounts previously written off decrease the amount of the allowance for loan impairment in the income
staterment,

Festructired i ures

Restructured credd exposures which show signs of impairment and which are considered to be individually significant are
provisioned on an individual basis. The amount of the loss & measured as the difference between the restructured loan’s
carrying amount and the present value of its estimated future cash flows discounted at the loan's original effective interest
rate (specific impairment), Restructured loans with arrears more than 30 days and which are individually ingignificant or
restructured loans which do not show signs of mpairment are collectively assessad for impairment.

15
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Assels scauired in axchange for loa ro

Mon-financial essets repossessed in exchange for loans as part of an orderly realisation are raparted in “other assets”
The assel acquired is recorded at the lower of its fair value less costs to sell and the camying amount of the loan at the
date of exchange. No depreciation is charged for assets held for sale. Any subsequant write-down of the acquired assel
to fair value ess costs to sell is recognised in the income statement in “net other operating income”. Any subsequent
increase in the fair value less costs to sall, to the extent this does not exceed the cumulative writa-down, ks also recogrised
in “riat othar operating income”, together with any realisad gains or lossas on disposal.

(b Assets classified as avallable for sale

The bank assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial assel or group of
financial assels is impaired. In determining whether an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired the following criteria
are considersd:

» detenoration of the ability or willingness of the deblor 1o service the obligation;

« @3 political situation which may significantly impact the debtor's ability to repay the loan;

» additional evenis that make it unlikaly that the carrying amount may be recoverad,

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale, a significant or prolonged decling in the fair value of the -
security below its cost is considered in determining whether the assets are impairad.

If any such evidence exists, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the acguisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previcusly recognised in profit or loss — Is removed from equity
and recognisad in the income statement

Impairment losses recognised in the income statement on equity instruments are not reversed through the income
statemnent at any point thereafter. If, in a subseguent period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available for
sale increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairmant loss was recognised
in the income statarment, the Impairment loss is reversed through the income statement

The Bank primarily invests in government securities with fixed interest rates. As of 31.12.2017, all the 15IN's had O cupon,
Impairments on these investments are recognised when objective evidence axists thal the issuer is unable or unwilling to
senvice these abligations.

10) Intangible assets

Software acquired by the Bank is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impaiment losses (see
Note 12).

Subsequent expenditure on software assets is capitalised only when it increasas the future economic benefits embodied
in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is expansed as incurred

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. These costs are amortised on the basis of the expected useful kves. Software has a maximum expectad
ugaful ife of 5 years.

11) Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings comprise mainly branches and offices investments, All property, plant and equipmant are stated al
historical cost less accumulated deprectation and impairment losses (sea Note 40). Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Component parts of an asset are recognised saparately if they
have different useful lives or provide banefits to the bank in a different patiern.

Subsequent costs are included in the assal's carrying amount or are recognised as & separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that fulure economic benefits associated with the iterm will flow to the bank and the cost of the
ftem can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statemant during the
financial iod in which they are incurned, T ——
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Dapreciation on othar assets is calculated using the straight-line method o allocate their cost 1o their residual values
over their estimated useful ives, as follows:

= Buildings 40 years

= Leasehold improvements  minimum betwean coniract life or useaful life
= Furniture and eguipment 4 =15 years

— Motor vehicles & years

The assets’ residual carrying values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if aporopriate, at each balance sheet
date.

Gaing and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount, These are included in the
income staiement

The bank does nol hold investment propery.
12} Impairment of non-financial assets

Mon-financial assets are reviewed for indications of impaiment whenever events of changes in circumstances indicate
that the carmang amount may nol be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's
carrying value exceeds its recoverabla amount. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowast levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows.

13) Leases

The Bank is not engaged in finance leasas. In operating leases the Bank acts only as lessee. The total paymeants made
under operating leases are charged to the income statement under administrative expenses on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease, The leasing objects are recognised by the leasor.

The Bank applies IFRIC 4, which requires it 1o determina if an arrangement contains a lease.
14) Income tax
Current income fax

Income tax payvable on profits is calculated on the basis of the applicable lax law and & recognized as an expanse in the
period in which profits arise.

Deferred income fax

Defarred income tax is recognised in full, using the balance sheat lability method, on temporary differances arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements prepared in
accordance with IFRS, as adopted by EU. Deferred lax azsels and labilities are determinad using the tax rate (and law)
that has been anacted as of the belance sheet date and is expected 1o apply when the related deferred income lax asset
is realised or the deferrad income tax liability is settled. The tax planning period is three years

The masn temporary differences arise from revaluation of certain financial assels and labilities. However, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for i it arises from initial recognition of an asset or & Eability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the ransaction affects neither the profit (before tax) for the period according to
IFRS, nor the taxable profit or loss.

The tax effects of income tax losses available for cary forward are recognised as a deferred tax asset when i is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which these losses can be utilized

Deferred tax assels are reviewead at each reporling date and are reduced to the extent that it is no ionger probsble that
the related tax benefit will be realised.

7
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Deferred tax assets and llabiliies are offset if there Is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities against
current tax assets, and they relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable enlity, or on different
tax entities. but they intend to settle current tax liabllities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will
be realsed simultaneocushy.

Changes of deferred taxes related to fair value re-measurement of available-for-sale financial instruments are charged
to the Statement of Othar Comprehensive Income. The presentation in the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
is made on & gross basis, At the time of sale, tha respective deferred taxes ara recognised in the Statement of Profit or
Loss together with the deferred gain or loss.

The tax rate used to calculate tha current and deferred tax position as at 31 December 2017 was 16% (31 December
2018: 16%)

Taxation risk

The Bank is commitied to ensure sustainable pedformance of tax risk management by building and maintsining an
efficiant, effective and transparent tax functon within the organization.

Effective from 1 January 2012, IFRS implementation has been consideration for the revision of tax legislation in order to
introduce particular rules for the treatment of adjustments resulted at the implementation stage and afterwards. The
Authority regulated in time the tax implications on both, tax neutrality of IFRS Implementation and on budgetary sources,
by often amending related legislation.

In this context, careful analysis was performed in dentification of differencas in accounting treatment, having tax impact.
both in tarms of current fax and defarred tax.

It is expected that also in the future the tax framework will be subject to frequent amendments as a consequence of the
state budgetary needs or as a result of the Romania’s obligabions as an EU Member State. Given the precedents, they
may have retroactive application.

Tax liabilities of the Bank are open 1o & general tax inspection for a period of seven years

15) Liabilitles to banks and customers

Liabifities to banks and cuslomers are recognised inttially at fair value net of transaction costs incurred. They are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference between proceeds nel of transaction costs and the redemption -
value is recognised in the income statement over the period of the lability using the effective interest rate method.

All financial kabilities are derecognised when they are exiinguished — that is, when the cbiigation s discharged, cancelled
or expires

16) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when:
- thera is a present legal or constructive obligation resulting from past events;

- it is more likely than nat that an outflow of resources will be required to settie the abligation.
= the amount can be reliably estimated,

Where there are & number of similar obligations, the kelihood that an cutflow of resources will be required in a settlement

is determinad by considering the class of obligations as a whaole.

Provigions for which the timing of the outfiow of resources i known are measured al the present value of the
expenditures, if the cutflow will not be earlier than in one year's time. The increase in the present value of the obligation
due to the passage of time |3 recognised as an intaras! expense, -
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Contingent liabilities, which mainly consist of certain guarantees and leflers of credit issued for customers, are possible
obligations that arise from past events. As their occurrence, or non-occurrence, depends on wncertain future events not
wholly within the contral of the bank, they are nol recognised in the financial siatements but are disclosed off-balance
sheet unless the probability of settlement is remote (see note (63)).

The provisions for off-Dalance sheel credit risks relates primarily to undrawn lending commitments, letters of credit and
letiers of guarantee. Provisions related to off-bakance shee! credil exposures are determinad at each belance sheai date,
by apphying the provisioning rates, which are reviewed on annual basis and are sel based on the loss rates delermined
thraugh migration anahysis, ta the rravocable off-balance sheet credit exposure.

Contribution to the Deposit Guarantee Fund

The retail deposits and certain [egal enlity deposits, including SME depaosits, are guaranteed up to EUR 100,000 by the
Bank Deposit Guarantes Fund (the “Fund”) according lo the regulations in force (Law 311/2015 regarding the deposit
guarantea schame and the Deposit Guarantee Fund).

The Romanian credit institutions are obliged to pay an annual contribution to the Deposit Guarantee Fund ("FGBD-Fandul
da Garantare a Depozitelor Bancare™), in order to guarantee the clients’ deposits in case of the credit institutions
insofvency, as well as an annual contribution fo the Resolution Fund {"Fondul de Rezolutie”).

The Bank applied IFRIC 21 "Levies’, as this contribution to the Fund corresponds to a tax that needs to be fulfy recognized
as an axpense at the time the generating event occurs

17) Post-employment benefits and other employee benefits
{a) Shorf-term benefifts

Short-term empioyee bensfit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service
is pravided.

Short-term employee benefits include wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contributions. Short-derm employes
benefits are recognized as expense when sarvices are rendered

(b) Defined contribution plans

Obligations for contrbutions to defined confribution pension plans are recognized as an expense in the statement of
comprehansive income as incurred,

Tha Bank, in the normal course of business makes payments to the Romanian State funds on behall of its Romanian
emplioyaes for pension, health care and unemployment banefit. All employees of the Bank are members and are also
lagally obisged to make defined contributions (included in the social security contributions) to the Romanian State pension
plan (a State defined contribution plan). All relevant contributions to the Romanian Stale pension plan are recognized as
an expense in the statement of profit or loss as incurred. The Bank does not have any further abligations.

The Bank does not operate any independent pension scheme and, consequently, has no obligation in respect of pensions
The Bank does not operate any other defined benefit plan or postretirement benafit plan. The Bank has no obligation to
providge furiher services to current or former employeas.

18) Subordinated debt

Subordinated debt consists mainly of abilties to shareholders and oiher international financial institutions which in the
avent of insolvency or liguidation are not repaid until all non-subordinated creditors have been satisfied, There is no
abligation 1o repay early.

Faollowing initial recognition at fair value, the subordinated debt is recognised at amorlised cost. Premiums and discounts
are atcounted for over the respective terms in the income statarnent under “nat interast income”
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19) Share capital

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds as (negative) capital reserne

Dividends on ordinary shares are treated as an appropriation of profit in the period in which they are approved by the —
Bank's shareholders.

20) Interest income and expense

Interest income and expenses for all interest-bearing financial instruments, are recognised within “interest income” and
“interest expense” in the income statement using the effective interest rate method. Interest income and expense are
recognised in the income statement in the period in which they arise.

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes all fees and points paid or received transaction costs, and discounts
ar premiums that are an integral part of the effective interes! rate. Transaction costs are incramental costs that are directly
atiributable to the acguisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or liability. =

Interest income and expense presented in the income statement include interest on financial essets and liabilities at
amortised cost on an effective interest rate basis and interest on available-for-sale investment securities calculated on
effactive inlerest basis,

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a resull of an impairment loss,
interest income is recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring —
the impairment loss,

21) Fee and commission income and expenses

Fee and commission income and expenses olher than those related to the origination of a financkal instrument are
recognised on an accrual basis when the service has been provided

Loan commitment fees for loans that are likely to be drawn down are deferred (logether with related direct costs) and
racognised as an adjustment to the effective interast rate of the loan,

Ofther fees and commission income, including account servicing fees, foreign cumrency transactions fees, fees for =
guarantees given and opening of letter of credit fees are recognised as the related services arne perarmed on an
accrual basis.

Other fees and commisskon expense relates mainly to transaction and service fees, which are axpensed as the services —
are receved

22) Dividends

Dividend income is recognised when the right lo receive income is established, Usually this Is the ex-dividend date for
aquity securities, Dividends are reflected as a component of ether cperating income based on the underyirg classification
af the eguity instrument,

Dividends are treated as an appropriation of profit in the period they are declared and approved by the General Assambly
of Sharaholders. x-

23) Offsetting
Financial assets and liabilities are set off and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the
Bank has a legal right to set off the amounts and intends either to selile on a net basis or 1o realize the esset and sellle
the liability simultaneausly.

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted by the accounting standards, or for gaing and
losses arising from a group of similar transactions such as in the Bank's trading acliity.
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24) Amortised cost measurement

The amortised cost of a financial asset or Eability is the amount at which the financial asset or labdity 15 measured
subsequent to initial recogniton, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amotisation using the effective
interest method of any difference between the inifial amount recognised and the maturity amount, minus any raduction
far mmpairmeant.

25) Fair value measurement

"Fair valug' is the price hal would be recaived to sell an assel or paid o transfer a liakdity in an orderly ransaction
betwesn markel participants at the measuremeant date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market
to which the Bank has access at that date, The fair value of a liability refiects its non-performance risk.

When available, the Bank measuras the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active markel for that
instrument. & marke! iz regarded as aclive If iransactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and
violume o provide pricing information on an on-going basis.

If thara is no quoted price in an active market, then the Bank uses valuation techniques that maximise the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimise the use of unobeervable inputs. The chosen valualion technigue incorporates all of the
factors that market participanis would take info account in pricing a fransaction

The bast evidenca of the falr value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is normally the transaction price = e, the
fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Bank determines that the fair value at inifial recognition differs from
the fransaction price and the fair valug is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or
liability nor based on a valuation technigue that uses only data from ocbservable markets, then the financial instrument =
initialy measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the
transaction price. Subsequently, that difference is recognised in profit or koss on an appropriste basis over the life of the
instrument but na later than whan the valuation is wholly supported by chserveble market data or the transaction is closed
ot

If an aszel or a liability measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask prica, then the Bank measures assats and long
positions at a bid price and liabilities and short positions al an ask price.

Portfolios of financial assets and financial liabilties that are exposed o market risk and credit risk that are managead by
the Bank on the basis of the net exposure o either market or credit risk are measured on the basis of a price that would
be received to sell @ net long position {or paid to transfer 8 net short position) for a particular risk exposure. Those portfolic-
level adjusiments are allocated to the individual assets and liabilities on the basis of the relative risk adjustiment of each
of the individual instruments in the portfolio

The fair value of a demand deposit is nol less than the amount payable on demand, discounted from the first date on
which the amount could be required to be paid

The Bank recognises transfers between levels of the fair value higrarchy as of the end of the reporing period during which
the change has occurred

IFES 13 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an crderly
transaction betwesn market participants &t the measurameant date.

The same standard defines a fair value hierarchy which categorises into fhree levels the inputs used in valuation
techniques to measure fair value,

Level 1 Inputs
Quoted prices [unadjusted) in active markets for identical assels or habilities that the entity can access at the

measuramant date.
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Lewved 2 Inputs

Other then guoted market prices included within Level 1 that are obaervable for the asset or liability, ether direclly or
indiracily.

Level 3 Inputs

Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability

C. Notes to the Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

28) Net interest income

in LEI
_Interest and similar income 1.1.-31.12.2017  1.1.-31.12.2016
Imferast income fram
Cash and cash equivalents and leans and edvances to banks 283174 184 488
Interest income from availabie-for-sale assets 314,904 367,284
Interest income from loans and advances 1o customers 65,820,521 82.341,929
Total interest income 66,418,588 82,893,701
Interest and similar expenses 1.1.-31.122017  1.1.-31.12.2016
Interast expenses an
Liahilities to banks 5,361,138 8,011,269
Liabilities to cuslamarns 3,955 957 7,661 481
Liabilities to international financial institutions 1923619 1,887, 847
Subordinated debt 187,228 2,401,429
Total interest expenses 11,441,843 19,772,028
Met interest income 54,978,656 73,121,675

27) Allowance for impairment losses on loans and advances

At 31.12 2017, based on management asseasment, there is no allowance for imparment on loans and advances to banks
and available for sale essets.

Risk provisions on loans and advances to customers are reflecied in the income statement as fallows:

At December 31, 2017

Business|  Agricutture] Housing] Consumes| Other] Total
Increase of impsirment charge 4680 688 2506 543 1,768 BT 14 10,8988.8519
Increase of impaimment charge off balance sheet i 20,512 . - - - 20,512
Release of impairment charge (B.464.610) (5.467.034) (B4266) (12.284) (249) (14,028,453)
Release of impairment charge off balance sheet i (22,148} : i : : (22.148)
Met recoveres of sold and witten-off bans {1.376.885) (751.503) - - - (2, 128,4588)
Urwinding effect (412,267} (254.036) o . {B56.333)
Total [1,574,63T) [4,186,031) (82.478) (11,608)  (235) (5,834,389)
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At December 31, 2016 — ] B

Business| _ Agricutwe| Housing| Consumer] Ot Totall
increase of impairment charge 12,155,259 64597 517 37365 1,584 1 18882126
increase of impairment charge off balance sheet it 458 73 - = - - 49,73
Releass of impalment charge (10,408 361} (4443 444} (23.858) (30347) (409 (14,906.818)
Releass of impairment charge off balance sheet e (47,141} - - - - (47,141}
Mal recoveries of sold and written-off lnans {1,8158,508) (337 455) - - - {2,256 960}
Umnwinding effect if24.863) (266,504 S (B9, 767)
Total (734.880) 1448815 13510 (28,883) (408) E39.074

The Bank has sold non-performing credit exposures in amount of LEI 11,3 million with a sale price of LEI 3,007,140

2B) Net fee and commission income

in LEI
Fee and commission income 1.1.-31.12.2017 1.1.-31.12.2016
Payment fransfers and transactions 3,154 666 6,596,697
Account maintenance fee 5,038,216 4,090,704
Letiers of credit and guarantesas 154,085 163,229
Debit! credit cards 3,058,615 3.553 950
Other fea and commission incomea 814,373 1,327 840
Total fee and commission income 12,249,958 15,832,220
Fee and commission expenses 1.1.-31.12.2017 1.1.-3.42.2016
Payment transfers and transactions BEg Ta5 1,162 989
Aceount maintenance fee 255,652 178,154
Letters of credit and guarantees 18,540 16,561
Debit' credit cards 947 003 1,546,103
Other fes and commission expenses 1,935 783 2,847 251
Total fee and commission expenses 4,027,773 5,851,058
Met fee and commission income B, 222 185 9,981,162

29) Net result from foreign exchange transactions

“Result from foreign exchange transactions” refers to the results of foreign exchange dealings with and for customers,
The Bank does not engage in any foreign currency trading on its own account. In addition, this position includes unrealised
foreign currency revaluation effects. The Bank does not apply hedge accounting as defined by 1AS 39,

in LEI - 143422017 1.4.-31.12.2016
Currency transactions 4,581,210 4,559 506
Revaluaton general a B -313, 508 -170,797
Total 4,267,702 4,799,109
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30) Met result from available-for-sale financial assets -

This item includes the gains or losses from disposal of available-for-sale financial assets as well as impaiment losses

and gains from reversal of impairment

_in LEI 1.4.-3142.2017  1.1.-31.12.2018
Met result from disposal of available-for-sale financial assets 20,096 24,403
Total 28,086 24,403 =
31) Net other operating expense
in LE1 1431122017 1.1.-31.12.2016
income from disposal of property, plant and equipm. 3,184,555 203,405
Income from reversals of other prov not related to lending 2,655,179 - .
Qthers 1,768,182 1,277,358
Total other operating Income 7,807,916 1,580,763
Expenses for disposal of property, plant and equipm. 7,254 840 4141022 ==
Expenses for other provisican not related (o lending - T893 327
Others 50,202 698,032
Surcharges / tickets 1,164,005 822 =
Expensas for deposil insurance furd 237,712 1,868,624
_Expenses for impaiment of repros. property 385,163 BE,180
Total other operating expenses 9,132,822 7,695,017
Total -1,624,906 6,114,264

This item includes expense from the disposal of tangible assets (RON 7.3 mic), income from sale of plant and equipments -

(ROM 3 mio) considering the locations closed during the year and the sale of the IT equipments in the process of

outsourcing the networking infrastructure

32) Personnel and administrative expenses

Personnel expensas can be broken down as follows:

in LE| 14142217 1:.1_.-_31-12.2D15
Salary expenses 18,826,332 24,329 654
Social security BxXpenses 4,440 983 5,444 349 =
out of which pension cantribulion 3,087,007 3782 142
Other personnel expansas 489,152 629,539
_Training and recruting expenses 1,625,155 1,267,691 L,
Total 26,381,662 31,671,233
*Administrative expenses” include the following tams: =
in LEI 1.4.31.12.2017__ 1.1.-31.12.2016
Communication and IT axpensas 12,482 550 8,523,392 i
Transpor 2,918,381 2573208
Offica supplies 958,506 1,030,921
Security service 317 431 577,068 -
Marketing, advertising and entertainmaeant 338 381 515,189
AN
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Construction, repairs and maintenances 1,185,808 1,122 187
Other tax expensas 5,331,647 4,811,771
Consullancy, Legal and Audit fees 3,240,517 2,476,850
Insurance 539173 512,603
Lititities 470,329 714,530
Other administrative expenses 4.412 874 3, 546 481
Total 32,196,095 26,504,198

The fotal expense booked in relation with the bank's external auditor in 2017,
the Bank was 248 852 LE! (2016; 346,014 LEI).

33) Income tax expenses/income

Thiz item includes all taxes on income. Incame Ex axpansas were as follows:

for audit of IFRS Financial Statements of

in LEI 1431422017 1.1.-31.12.2016
Current tax axpanss s =
Deferred tax expense -529, 547 -938,950
Total 529,647 -938,950

D. Notes to the Statement of Financlal Position

34) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise the following items:

Az at 31 December

m LEI 2017 2016
Cash in hand 35,782,513 36,435.519
Balances at central banks excluding mandatory reserves 72 2B BT 23472 378
Mandatory reserve deposits B 85,303,579 102,074,729

193,314,659 161,982 624

Total cash and cash equivalents

The following cash equivalents have been considered for the cash flow stalements:

A= at 31 December

in LEI 2017 2016
Cash equivalents recognized in the balance sheet statement 193,314,669 161 982 624
Loans and advances to banks with a maturly up fo 3 months, which

qualify as cash

for the cash flow 33,658,554 B2, 723,222
Minimum reserve with central bank -B5,303, 579 -102.074,728
Total cash equivalents for cash flow statement 141,709,633 142,631,117

The cash held with the Central Bank ensures compliance with the minimum ressrve requirements. These funds are not
evailable for the Bank's daily business. Al 31 December 2017 the minimum mandatory reserves rates established by the
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Mational Bank of Romania for raised funds with maturity lower than 2 years and for funds raised with residual maturity -
greater than 2 years, which foresee contractual clauses regarding relmbursements, withdrawals, anticipated fransfers,
are as follows: 8% for funds raised denominated in LEl and 10% for funds reised denominated in foreign currency (31
December 2016 8% for funds raised denominated in LEl and 12% for funds raised denominated in foreign currency for
period January — September 2016 and 10% for funds raised denominated in foreign currency starting Oclober 2018), -

35) Loans and advances to banks

Loans and advances to banks are as follows:

in LEI

A= at 31 Decembear

: 2017 2016
Loans and advances o banks in QECD countries - 2,162,918
Loans and advances o banks in non-0ECD countries 245,708 36,540,935

_Loans and advances lo banks in Group Banks 33,451,755 44,019,368

33,608,553 82,723,222

Total

Loans and sdvances to Banks comprise of currenl accounts held at other banks and deposils with banks, Current
accounts hald at other banks are at the immediate disposal of the Bank. The deposits with banks are unencumbered. =
Loans and advances to banks represent nastro accounts o banks which have Fitch ratings from BBB- to BEE.

36) Available-for-sale financial assets

This balance sheet item primarily includes securities with fixed interest rates, most of which are freasury bills.

in LEI As at 31 December
_Available-for-gale financial assets 2017 _ 2016
Fixed interest rate sacunties (Thills) 51,887 058 85 865,084
Shares in companies located in non-0OECD couniries 27,002 27,002 .
Total available-for-sale financial assets 51,914,070 86,802,086
Available for sale financial assets represent Thills with Fitch rating BBB-, =
37) Loans and advances to customers
Loans and advances 1o customers are as follows.
in LEI Allowance Share of Mumberof Share of —
Gross for ket total  outstanding total
As at December 31, 2017 amount impairment amount __ portfolio loans  numbar
Buginees loans TEQ 447 251 27 529 522 741,917,338 T4.6% 4,007 B2.8%
_Agricutiural koans 260,911,558 -3 502 005 252 408.570 25. 3% 2,260 35.9%
Housing improvement koans 1,154,421 48,023 1,106,358 0.1% 15 0.3%
_Consumer loans * 602,457 -38,528 563,829 0.1% 10 0.2%
ther loans 3992 -58 3,504 0.0% 5 0.1%
Total 1,032,119,887 -36,119,617 996, 0:00,070 100, 0% 6,300 100.0%

* congumer loans sl includs
overdralis to private individuals
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in LEI Allowance Share of Mumberof Share of
Gross for Met total  outstanding total

As at December 31, 2016 amount impairment amount  portfolio loans  number
Buginess knans 757 586 630 ~3H, ZET G50 710,608 252 71.8% 6,139 G0.2%
_Agriculiural loans 298 538 625 -12,431, 367 285,408 350 28.2% 3,907 39.2%
Housing improvemant loans 1,118.279 -130,501 Bav.7vE 0.1% 26 0.3%
Consumer oans * BSY, TG 50,236 BOY, 533 0.1% 25 0.2%
CHher lnans 20,201 -283 18,808 0.0 10 Q1%
Tatal 1,058,522 504 -50,599,964 1,007,822 540 100, 0% 10,167 100,10,

* consumer loans also include
owerdrafts io private individuats

38) Allowance for losses on loans and advances

Allcwance for impairment losses on loans and advances cover the risks which arise from the category “loans and
receivables” (ses also note (9) and note {55)). In addition to the allowance for specific impairment losses for receivables
for which there is objective evidence of impairment, lump-sum specific provisions and a general allowance wera formed
o cover impairment loss relating to the customer loan porifolio a5 & whobs:

As at 31 December
inLEl 2017 2016
Allcwance for impairment on loans and advances to customers

Specific impairment 159,388,937 28,375 965
Allowance for individually insignificant impaired loans 8,945,134 12,375,473

_ Allowance for collectively assessed loans 6,785,546 8,848,520
Total 36,119,817 50,598,964

The following table shows the movement of allowances for impairment logses for loans and advances to customers during

2017

in LEI
_As at January 1 2017 2018
Allowance for impairment on loans and advances o customears 50,599 954 63,550 880
Additions 15464, 711 39,323,127
Amount used for write offs/portfolic sale =11, 742,389 17,231,278
Raleases -18.503, 245 -35,108,527
Exchange rate adjustments 300,576 57.762
36,119,617 50,599,964

As at December 31




39) Intangible assets

The development of intangible assets is shown in the following tables:

[\4';'-\, ProCredit Bank _

A=z at 31 December

in LE 2017 2016
Met book value at January 1 6,014,652 6,018,620
Tatal acquisition costs at January 1 30,384 092 26,927 563
Additions =43 423 -3,625,641
Disposals £,186,985 168,212
Total acquisition costs at Decamber 31 22,241,430 30,384,992
Accumulated depreciatiocnJanuary 1 24,370,340 20,509 143
Depreciation 1,804,718 3,614,135
Accumulated depreciation for disposal -3, 186 885 152,938
Accumulated amortization at December 31 18,088,074 24,370,340
Nat book value at December 31 4,153,356 5,014,652
During the years 2017 and 2018, there was no internally developed software.
40) Property, plant and equipment
The mavement of property, plant and equipment was as follows:

in LEI Land and Leasehold Fumnitures IT and other

A% at December 31, 2047 buildings _ improvements _ and fixtures egquiprnent Total

Met bock vales 8% January 1, 2017 8,400,192 2,008 597 9387 115 18,788 004

Total scquisition costs at January 1, 2007 13,847,150 4 484 857 27 476 BBY 45,818 595

Abclitions . 4,141,175 874 733 3,087 672 8,003,580

Disposals - -6, 745,077 2,198 367 -13515 815 =22 863,058

Total acquisition costs at December 31,

2017 11,239,248 3171023 17,548,946 31,858,217

Accurmulated depreciation Janwary 1, 20797 - 7445550 1,485,560 18,080,774 27,032,683

Amonization - 1,687 £81 535,261 1,724,513 3,847 454

Accumulated depreciation for disposal - -3, 665 284 -1, 655,701 =10,057 5634 -15,388,580

Accumulated depreciation at Decembear

31, 2017 - 5,469,376 375,520 9,746,653 15,591,648

et book value at December 31, 2017 - 5,768,872 3.321.33.3 7,278.413 16,367 668
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in LEI Land and Leasehaold Fummitures  |T and other

As al December 31, 2016 buildings  improvements  and fixtures eguipment Tatal
Wet book value at January 1, 2018 2,380 648 4,785,376 2,239,412 9,747 573 18,124,007
Total acquisition costs at January 1, 2015 3.186.867 14,344 055 4,185 406 27305448 49,011,680
Additions - 5.401,381 1,791, 528 4,352 497 11,545 401
Disposals -3, 1650, 887 -5, 8840, 188 =1,492 377 -4 181,081 -14 738,384
Total acquisition costs at December

31, 2016 . 13,847,151 4,454 657 27,476,868 45,818,897
Accumulated deprecistionlanuary 1, 2016 515.221 9,568,583 1,955,903 17,657 874  29.BB7.671
Amortizatun 66,035 1,515,944 455,411 2,531 382 4856772
Accumulated deprecialion for dispossl -B81,258 -3,627 568 <015 444 -2,389.482 =T, 813,750
Accumulated depreciation at

December 31, 2016 - 7446 959 1,498,960 18,089,774 27,032,803
Met book value at December 31, 2016 i] 5,400,132 2,998,697 8,387,115 18,788, 004

41) Operating lease commitments
Az at 31 December

in LEI 2017 2016

Operating lease commitments

- iy bater than one year 4,804 402 B,B26,011
- later than one year but no later than five years 10,735,165 19,106,343
_- later than five years B - 418,861
Total 15,638,567 26,162,316

Operating lzase commitments result from non-cancellable rental agreements for properties in which the Bank operates;
the amaounts in the above table are calculated based on current rental agreements.

42) Income taxes

Defarred income taxes are recognised in full| under the balance shest method, on temporary differences arising batwean
the tax basa of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts, using the applicable tax rate.
The table below shows the changes in deferred income laxes and the underlying business transactions:

in LEIl As at 31 December
Deferred taxes 2017 2016
At January 1 3,723,605 4,664 719
Available-for-sale sacurities:

- fair value remeasurament -2 505 -2,164
Charges fo income statement -529 547 -§38.950
Total 3,181,553 3,723,606

The following table show the business activities 1o which the profit and loss from deferred taxes is related:
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Deferred tax charges 1131122017 1.1.-31.12.2016
Tax kass carried forward 177,815 782,509
Other temporary differences 351,632 146,441
Total 529,547 838,950
43) Effective tax reconciliation
lin LEI 1.1.-31.12.2017 1.1.-31.12.20116
Prafitloss) before tax 993,047 5 665,597
Tax expected (16%) 189,032 Q06,498
Tax effects of tams which are not deductible:
- pon-taxable income -1,244 527 -236,061
- mon-tax deduclible expansas 1,408,852 487, B45
Tax effect fram other temporary differences 205,190 -228,130
income tax expense for the year according to IFRS 529,547 938,950

44) Other assets

Other assels are as follows:

As at 31 December
in LEI 2017 2018
Asgsets in course of construction 1,256,888 2,454 411
Repossessed proparties 434,774 441,770
Oither inventory lems 384 462 182,272
Agzats to be sold - 2,284 795
Prepaid expenses 4,319 244 4,175,563
Advance payments 406 872 324,859
Total 6,802,240 9,847,774

Repossessed properties as shown in the above table are carried at the lower of the previous carrying amount of the
written-off loan and fair value less cost to sell. Repossessed properties are sold at the highest possible prica, typically
via public auction. Most repossessed proparty consists of land and buildings, Prapayments represent only assets in
course of construction. Prepaid expenses reffer mainly to IT and rents for bank premises.

{ther financial assels are as follows:
A= al 3 December

in LEI 2017 2018
Guarantees 741,018 1,123,626
Claims from laxes 899 206 1,822 480
Others 1,184,507 T0B,244

Total 2,924,731 3,654,350




Current tax assals are a5 follows:
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As at 31 December

in LEI 2017 2016
Current tax assal 3197006 3162175
Total 3,197,006 31621756

Current tax assetfs represent corporale income tax payable according to legislation in force.

45) Liabllities to banks

Share of Share of
tatal tokal
_in LEI 2017 portfolic 2016 portiolio
Liabdties o banks i QECD countries 173,847 857 2% 128,121,802 100%
Liabilties to banks in non-OECD countries 66,000,000 28% - o
Total 239,847 857 100% 128,121,982 100%

46) Liabilities to customers

Liabilities to customers consist of deposits due on demand, savings deposits and term deposils. The following table

shows a breakdown by customer groups:

[ [As at 31 Shareof  Asat 31 Share of
December  total December  total

in LEI 2M7 partfolic 2016 portiolio
Current accounts 328,049,962 47% 276,573,788 33%
-private individuals 108,375, 759 15% 85,872,924 10%
-legal entties 219,673,183 3% 190,500,884 23%
Savings accounts® 107,708,259 18% 58,970,026 %
-private individuals 75,831,874 10% 32,528,518 4%
-legal entities 531,676,385 5% 26443508 3%
Term deposit accounts 261,149,084 AT% 4598 380847 59%
-private individuals 165,540,650 23% 370,388,232 45%
-legal enfities 95,589,395 14% 119,002,415 14%
Other liabilities to customers 8,102.904 1% 5771971 1%
Total 705,010,210 | 100% | 838706432 |  100% |

The categery “legal entities” includes labilities to non-govemmaental organisations (MGOs) and public-sector institutions.

k1
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47) Liabilities to international financial institutions

Lighilities to international financial institutions are an important source of financing for the Bank. Medium o longlerm
loans from international financial institutions are reported under this item. Liabilities to International Financial Institutions
{IFl) are interest-bearing borrowings frem specified Financial Institutions. They are inifially recognized at the fair value
of the consideration received and directly attributable transaction costs. After initial recognition liabiities to IFls are
subsequently maasured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

The following table gives a detailed breakdown for this ttem;

Az of December 2047

Due in Due i Diiser im Diue in Due after without
in LEI 2018 218 2020 20 pliFy) matusrity Total
Lisbilities IFT with
fixed interast rates | 46,018,372 20,887,772 78,907 044
Liabdities IF1 with
| wariabla inenast
Lretes 25,022 508 18,308 664 11,640,250 11,648,250 247546858 | 145075 91,366,643 |
Total 71,041,870 18,305,964 11,648,250 11,849,250 54,642,428 -15,075 167,273,687
As of December 2016
Due in Dua in Dua in D in Diuse aftar withwsut
in LEI 2017 2B 2018 2029 2020 maturity Tatal
Liabiles IF| with l [ _|
fooed inderest rates . |
Liakilities 171 wih |
variwole inberes
rates 24,356 BB | 24,324,707 24.324, 707 24,324,707 114 630,341 18,707 211,861,422 |
Total 24,366,668 24,324,707 24,324,707 24,324,707 114,630,341 9,707 211,851 422
48) Provisions
As at 31 December
in LEI 2017 2018
As at January 1, 2017 3,063 687 423178
Additicns 392,443 3.078.841
Used -2 881,245 -383.215
Aninhacd 58,008 47,141
Exchange rate adjustments . -1,248 2,976
As at December 31, 2017 405,625 3,063,887
As at 31 December
in LEI 2017 2016
Prowisions for restructuring * 1,078,728
Provisions for imminent losses from off-balance sheet tems 33,694 36,576
Diher provisions - 1,583,569
Provisians for untaken vacation 371,931 304,814
405,625 3,063,687

Total
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For the provisions for untaken vacation and for off-balance shaeet items the outflow of economic benefits is expected
durirg the three months following the balance shest dafe,

48) Other financial liabilities
= Az at 31 December

in LEI 2097 2016
= Deferred income 20,023 83,618
Accrued payabiles 804,782 1,380,041
Liabilities for goods and services 1,765, 047 2,800,807
— Liabilities from social insurance contribulions 552 752 732,550
Liabilties o stale budget _@45,922 440,281
Total 3,488,526 5,437,405

50) Liabilities from financing activities

— In LE) 2017
Met debt at 1 January 2017 -340,125,781
Cash flows -5, 364 128
Fayments on Borowings 94 0T OTH
B Payments of interest on borowings 5228 715
Loans from banks drawn =01, 432 585
Other non-cash movemsenis ~A%H a5
Net debt at 31 December 2017 -341,085 890

51) Subordinated debt

The subordinated dabt can be broken down as follows:

i in LEI As at 31 December
Recelved from (principal) D_l_-hl 2017 2018
ProCredit Holding AG & Co. KGaA. Frankfurt am Main, Germany 2025 - 13623300
ProCradit Holding AG & Co. KGaa, Frankfurt am Main, Germany 2025 - 8,082,200

_ProCredit Holding AG & Co. KGaA, Frankfurt am Main, Germany 2025 - 17,028,125

Total - 39,734,625

_ Accrued interest on subordinated debt 2047 2016

_ProCradit Holding AG & Co. KGaA_ Frankfurt am Main, Germany x 13,267

o Tﬂﬂ-‘ - 3‘9|?4?|E‘92
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In accordance with the decisions taken by the Extraordinary General Assembly of Shareholders convened in Decembear
2016 and January 2017, and fallowing the National Bank of Romania approval in January 2017, the subardinated loans
granted by PraCredit Holding A G &CO.KGah. , in aggregate amount of EUR 8,750,000 has been converted into social

capital.
52) Share capital

As at 31 December 2017 (compared to 2018), the shareholder structure was as follows:

ir LEJ 207 :
Shareholder i
Sﬁ:; Humbny Amount
i % of shares
ProCredit Holding AG & Co. KGad, Frankfurt am Main, Germany go.0995 20,115,089 158,060,971
ZFEITINGER INVEST GMBH ["ZI),
Frankfurt am Main, Germany 0.0005 100 1,000
Capital total 100.0% 199,061,571
_inLE) 2016
Shareholder Size of Nurmbar
s_lake ol s Amount
in %
ProCredit Holding AG & Co. KGaA, Frankfurt am Main, Germany 50 9504 16,177,044 159 650,734
IPC - Internationate Propekt Congult GmibH
Frankfurt am Main, Germany I].{IEIII.F.:E 100 ga7
100.0% 158,681,721

Capital total

The par value per share is LEl 10.00

At the end of December 2017, the level of IFRS share capital was LEI 199,061,971, while the registered share capital

was in amount of LE1 201.151.680; the difference in value of LE| 2,08%, 718 represents IFRS adjustment in accordance
with 1AS 21 =The effects in changes in Foreign Exchange Rates.

Share premium:

Date LEI
Premium paid by ProCredit Hokding AG & Co. KGaA, April 2008 1,273,775
As at December 31, 2047 1,273,775
Resarves:

As at 31 Decembear

in LEI ) 2017 2016
Lagal resarve 3,372,009 3322312
General banking risks reserve 6,166,252 6,166,252
Total 9,538,261 9,488,664
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Legal reserves represent accumulated transfers from retained eamings in accordance with local banking regulations that
require 5% of the Bank's statutory gross profit to be transferred to 8 non-distributable statutory reserve until such time this
resernve represents 20% of the Bank's share capital

The general banking risks reserve include amounts set aside in accordance with local banking regulations for future losses
and other unforeseen risks of contingencies, which are separately disclosed as appropriations of profit. The general banking
risks reserve was appropriated from the statutory gross profit at the rate of 1% of the balance of the assets carmying specific
banking risks unfil the end of 2006 as required by local legislation. In the Statement of the Financial positicn is presented
under Accumulated loss

E. Risk Managemeant

53) Management of the overall Bank risk profile

1. The risk profile and the risk appetite

The main principle behind the risk management framework of ProCredit Bank SA is that the Bank does naot take more
risk than it is capable of bearing. Therefore, the Board of Administration establishes an overall risk profile and a risk
profile for each of the significant risks identified by the Bank. The main purpose of these risk profiles is that of defining
the nsk appetite as the acceptable limits within which the Bank's activity should be pursued in order to reach the business

goaks.

The significant risks acknowledged by the Bank are: credit riek, counterparty risk (including izsuer risk), liquidity rigk,
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, business risk (including strategic risk), operational risk, complance risk and
reputaticnal risk. The Bank evaluates the risk exposure to each significant risk through the risk profile indicators on a
monthly basis, and compares the results with the defined risk appetite. The cutcome of this analysis is reported requilarly
{a the Board of Administration.

Currently, the Bank's ovarall risk appetite is established as the medivm-low (o medium interval, while the overall rizk
tolerance is established as the low o medium-high interval, The risk profile targets for each significant risk are medium-
high for credit risk, medium for liquidity risk, interest rate risk, operational risk and business risk (including strategic risk),
and medium-low for counterparty risk, foreign currency nsk, repulational risk and compliance risk.

2. Capital management
The capital management of the Bank has the following objectives;

= Ensyring thal the Bank's capital is permanently adequate, both as to volume and quality in order to cover the
[potential) losses arising from different risks even under extrame circumstances
Full compliance with exdernal capital reguirements sei by the regulstor,
Meeting the internally defined minimum capital adequacy requirements
Enabling the Bank to implement its plans for continuing growth while following its business sirategy.

The internal capital adequacy assessment process of ProCradit Bank SA is governed by the Bank's Internal Capital
Adequacy Assassment Process (ICAAP) Policy. The main tools used to assess and monitor the capital adequacy of the
Bank are the Regulatory capital ratios, the Internal Capital Requirement, the Tier 1 leverage ratio and the risk bearing
capacity. These tools are monitored en a monthly basis by the Bank's Managers, the Audit and Risk Management
Committes and ultimately by the Board of Administration.

External minimum capital requirements are imposed and monitored by the local banking system superviscry authority,
namely National Bank of Romania. Capital adequacy is calculated based on the International Financial Reporting
Standards figures and are reported to the Bank's Managers and Audit and Risk Management Committee on a monthly
basls. These raports include rolling forecasts to ensure not only current bat also future compliance.
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The fellowing table shows the Bank's capital adequacy ratios, calculated according 1o the provisions of Regulation (EL)
no. 575/2013 on prudential requirements for credit instituticns and invesiments firms ("CRR") corrcborated with
Regulation (National Bank of Romania) ne. 52013 on prudential requirements for cradit institutions.

Az at 31 December

_In LEI 2017 2016
Ordinary shara capital 199,081,971 155,681,721
Capital reserve 1,273,775 1,273,775
Legal resenves 3,372,003 3,322,312
Accumulated losses -B,B25,BT75 -B.576.17T8
Less other intangibles 4,153,356 5,014 652
Less other regulatory adjustmiant -T42 207 -395,615
Common Equity Tier | 190,186,317 148,291,363
Tier | capital 180,188,317 149,281,363

“Qualifying Subordinated liabilities 0 30,734 B25
Other regulatory adjustment a -288.322

“Tier Il capital 0 39,446,303
Regulatory adjustment L A
Total regulatory capital 190,186,317 188,737,666

The regulatory capital ratios are complemeanted by internal capital requirements. Under Basel Il Pillar | framework, the
Bank calculates capital charges for credit and market risks using Standardized Approach and for operational risk using
the Basic Indicator Approach. Under Basel 11l Pillar Il framework, the Bank calculates additional capital changes for risks
naot coverad by Pillar | or not fully coverad by Pillar |,

During 2017 the Bank has updated its internal capilal adequacy assessment process in the course of regular angoing
review of its risk management methodalogies

A of 31%, December 2017 the solvency ratio expressed as a ratio of regulatory capital over risk weighted assels was
20.57% well in excess of minimum regulatory fimit.

Between 1* of January 2017 and 31* of December 2017, the Bank complied with the NBR imposed capital requirements.
54) Management of individual risks

In 2017, neither the managsment practices nor the reporting process of individual risks have bean materially modified,
although several methodologies have been updated in course of the regular revigw process.

The Bank places special emphasis on the general understanding of the factors driving risk and on the ongoing analysis
and company-wide discussion of possible rsk developmentsiscenarics and their potential adverse mpacts. The _
objectives of risk management include ensuring that all material risks are recognised in a fimely manner, fully understocd
and properly addressed.

The risk management processes include a reporting component to PraCredit Holding AG & Co. KGaA, in line with the
provisions included in the Procredit Group's risk management policies.
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58) Credit risk

Credit nek i& defined as the potential thal a counterparty to a cradit transaction will fail to meet its obligations lowards the
Bank in accordance with agreed terms. Credit risk arises from customer credit exposures (classic credit rigk}, credit
exposure from interbank placements and issuer risk (counterparty risk). It is further divided into credit default risk and
credit portfolio risk in order to facilitate focused nsk management, Credit risk is the single largest risk the Bank faces.

{a) Credit default risk from customer credit exposures

Credit defaull risk from customer credit exposures is defined as the risk of losses due to a potential non-fulfilment of the
contractual payment obligations associated with a customer credit exposure
The management of credit defaull risk from customer credit exposures is based on an extensiva implamentation of the
bank's lending principles;
* intensive analysis of the debt capacity of the Banks' clients
» careful documentation of the credit risk assessments, assuring that the analysis performed can be understood
by knowledgeabla third parties
rigorous avoidance of over indebling the Bank's clients
building a personal and long-term relationship with the client and maintaining regular contact
strict monitoring of loan repayment
practising tight arrears management
exercising strict collateral collection in the event of default
investing in well-trained and highly mativated staff
implementing carefully designed and well-documented processes
rigorous application of the “four-ayes principle”

L T N B I N B |

The decision-making process ensures that all credit decisions are taken by a Credit Committee. As a general principle,
the Bank considers it very important to ensure that s lending business is conducted on the basis of organisational
guidelines that provide for appropriate rules governing organisational structures and oparating procedures; job
descriptions that define the respective tasks: a clear allocation of decision-making authonty, and a clear definition of
responsibilities,

Credit exposures in arrears are defined as credit exposures for which contractual interest andfor principal paymeants are
overdue. The high quality of the loan portfolio compared with the overall banking sectar reflects the application of the
above lending principles and the results of the application of early waming indicators and appropriate monitering, in
particular of the individually significant credit exposures. This is a crucial element of the Bank's strategy for managing
arrears. Once arrears accur, the Bank follows up on the non-repayment of the credit exposures, and by so deing typically
identifies the potential for default on a credit exposure. Strict rules are applied regarding credit exposures for which, in
the Bank's view, there is no realistic prospect that the credit exposure will be repaid and where lypically the realisation
of collateral has either been completed or the outcome of the realisation process is uncertain. The Bank's recovary and
collection efforts are performed by specialised employees, typically with either & lending or legal background,

The effectiveness of this tight credit risk management is reflected in the comparably low arrears rate exhibited by the
loan portfolio t

Breakdown of loan portfolio by days in arrears

Al Decamber 31, 2007
11030 31 1o &0 &1 1o 90 21 to 180
inLEl 0 days days days days days = 180 days Total
Loans to cuslomers
Individually assessed loans
Business 12,555,305 2,127,058 1,126,448 213,441 1,009,627 16961413 34,013,262
Agrcullural 2480457 247 614 86,185 227,779 280,545 2.211,21% 5,553,609
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Collectively asssssed loans
Busiress 721,913,208 486,174 BR0, THE B12,B84 1,330,381 4,210,523 735,433,960
Agricudiural 245 282 024 2832 874 1,008,770 ST 121 1,546 454 3 0E0.454 285 257 747
Hiousing 976 568 80,173 77.561 . 10,720 - 1,154,420
Cansumer BO0A3T H - 2.0 . B0, 457
Othar 5,893 . = - - - 3953
Total 564,822,402 11,772,893 3,200,762 1,643,248 4,167,736 26483848  1,032.118.687
At December 31, 2018
1o 30 M o B0 &1 to 80 81 to 180
_inLE| 0 days daye days days days = 180 days Total
Loans ta cuslomans -
Individually assessed loans
Businass 13, B06 535 821947 1,713,908 68,340 1,888 051 28,680 B15 47 350, TEl
Agricuiural 5,609,627 i 754,308 i E43382 3,173,855 081 260 =
Collectively assessed loans
Business 653,302,068 9,130, 408 1040108 1401830 2,186,717 3,270,852 71,208 064 (=
Agricullual 273,336,700 5,368,278 2B83231  2OTi28 3,239,501 1,583 133 204 882,149
Housing BOT 523 0 62,735 15,857 102064 0 1,118,279
Consumer ga8 a4 5401 5,806 789 o i} BsT,7T
Cither 20,301 0 60 D 0 20,201 L
“Total SE5EI8,542  1E.126.112 7,390,965 4359123 71739806  I7.07B.ES6  1.058.822.504

The guality of the loan portfolic 15 monitored R an on-going basis. The main indicatar for loan portfolio quality is the _
portfolic at risk (PaR 30), which the Bank defines as all outstanding credit exposures with one or more paymant of interest
andior principal in delay by more than 30 days. This indicator was chosen because the most of credit exposures have
fixed instalments with monthly payment of principal and interest. Exceptions are seasonal agricultural loans, credit line
and ovardraft facilities. Na collateral is deducted and no other exposure-reducing measuras are applied whan determining —
FaR.

Furthermare, analysis by credit quality of outstanding loans is constantly performed.

At Degember 31, 2017

in LEI [ Agricultural | Business [ Consumer | Housing | Other | Grand Tatal i
| Neither past dus nor impaired
no armears _ | oepi1g4s | 720162918 | 600437 | 976966 | 2903 | 967,745,162
| Past due but not impaired i
1-30days [ 2741415 | 6737676 | . [ egi72 | - | 5568263 -
Loans individually determined fo be impaired =
ng anTears [ 2813828 15224129 | - | - - | 18,038,085
1-30 days | 578454 1,967 023 - | - - 2.545 477 L
31 - G0 days 1,968,144 2,857 902 2,018 TT.562 - 4,508 BIT
o1 - 180 days 1,506,057 3,410,396 = 10,720 = 4,926,173
181 - 360 days 710,204 4759973 5,470,177
> 360 days 4 581,508 15,337, 244 19,918,752 -
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&t December 31, 2016

_in LE| | Agriculturs | Business | Consumer [ Housing | Other | Grand Total
no amears | 27smszsen | eo0240350 | ea1Ese | evasis | 70201 | oesainase
Past due but nof impaired . _

' 1- 30 days | 5884322 | 7osa7ed | 5401 | : | - | 13848487
Loans individually determined to be impaired =
No Areans 4 234 TH1 17,212 417 14 265 32 BOE 21,484 041
1 - 30 days 100,328 1,151,338 1,251,566
31 - 80 days £ 536,505 6,060,390 8,575 106 652 11,832 652
o1 - 180 days 3828669 3,475,419 102,064 7 408,152
181 - 360 days 2 518,678 2 851,704 5,410,382

| = 380 days 2 483,052 28,976,267 31,458 319

Part of the non-

December 2016: LEI 20,

riarmin

lean portfolio was sold during the year 2017, with the gross amount of LEI 11,3 million (31
9,522). The sell agreements have taken place in May 2017, realizing a proceed of LEI

848 B40.
PAR as % Write-offs
Allowance .
in LEI Loan pertfalio for FAR 30 il Sold loans  'Wite- a8 %of
31, 2017 pafolla portiolic
Tatal 1,032,119,687 36,118,617 35524 3593 3.44% 11,300,000 442 3845 0.04%
PAR azs % Write-offs
Allowwance
in LEID“ Loan pertfslio for P‘Tﬂ‘;}“ h‘?:n Sold loans "';'f:ls‘“ “hi’n"'
5 &t embar i i 5
3, 2018 mpANTTant portfolio partfolio
Total 1,058,522 504 50,599,564 56 56T BED 534% 20,079,622 162,351 0025

Resfructuring of a credit exposure is generally driven by economic problems encountered by the client thal adversaly
affect the payment capacity, mostly caused by the significantly changed macro-sconomic anvirenment in which the
bank's clients currently operate. Restructurings follow a thorough, careful and individugl analysis of the client's changed
payment capacity. The decision (o restructure a credit exposure is always taken by a credit committee and aims at full
recovery of the credit expesure. If a credit exposure is restructured, amendments are made 1o the paramaiers af tha
loan.

Forbome loans are loans that have been restructured due to deterioration in the borrower's financial position and where
the Bank has made concessions that it would not atherwise consider.

As al 31 December 2017, the Bank applied EBA definition in force at this date in regards to forbome loans and in
consequence classifies as impaired the forborne nonperforming exposures. The loan portfolio contained forborme loans
with an outstanding of LE|l 44,534,072 representing 4% of total outstanding portfolio (31 December 2016 LEI
64,488 ,515).

The level of credit exposure defaulis to be expected within a ghwen yaar is analysed regularly, based on past experience
in this area. Incurred losses are fully covered with loan loss provisions

Individually significant credit exposures are reviewed for impairment on an individual basis (“specific impaiment”)
Impairment for individually insignificant credit exposures in arrears is calculated on a partfolic basis at histoncal default
rates: 30 or more days in arrears is considered as ohjective evidence of impairment, For all unimpaired credit exposures,
portfolic-based aliowances for impairment are made. again based on historical loss experience,
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Credit exposures with a higher risk profile are always covered with collateral, typically through morigages. Mortgages -
are revaluated yearly by professional and independant appraisals

The Bank holds collateral against loans and advances to customers in the form of pledge over cash deposits, morigage
interests over properly, guarantees and other pledge over eguipment's andior receivables. Ezstimates of fair value are
based on the value of collateral assessed at the ime of bomrowing, and generally are not updated except when a loan is
individually assessed as impaired, except for mortgage intarests over property which are reassessed yearly

The collateral presentad as the lower of loan exposure and collateral value, can be classified into the following categories:!

As at 3 December

In LEI 2017 2016
Morgages 584 928,397 BO2,157.936
Cash collateral 15,690,305 7.787 889
Financial Guarantees 110,566,280 08,656,771
Otner E@,ELH.ME 125,184,152
Total Bd4 428,528 833,786,748
The Bank holds collateral and other credit enhancements against cartain of it credit axposunes,
The table below sals out the collateral amount at market value held against differant lypes of loan product.
2017 20186 T
Loan Collateral Loan Collateral
In LEI exposura” Value exposure” Value
Business 750 447 281 G01,554,180 TET 586,630 574,386,301
Agricultural 260,911,558 241,211 857 298 533 625 257.6810,124
Haowsing 1,154,421 1,104,436 1,118,279 R4 ZE2
Consumer G02 457 566 256 857,769 BDE, 153
Other 3,883 - 20,201 19,848
Total 1,032,118,687 844,426,528 1,058,522,504  B33,TE6,748

*loan principal-unamortized disbursement fee

As of 31 December 2017, the Bank's portfoio consisted of 71.85% over-collataralized loans (72.07% &t 31 December

2018). The table below sats oul the effect af collateral.

Civer-collateralised assets Under-collateralised asasts
As at December | Carrying value of the Carrying value of the Fair value of
n, 07 assets Fair value of collateral assets collateral
in LEJ ' :
_.bgrlu:.urtl.n‘al 237 647, T30 536,052,835 231'63326 13.215,2:-15
Business 502.232.702 1,263,144,972 267,214,558 131,108,233
Cansumer 554,767 1,841,855 7.600 845
Hausing 1,152,430 _ 4,068,021 1891 1,062 |
Ot - - 3,993 ; 2 588
Total 741,627,629 | 1,805,107.483 | 290,492,058 147,334,072
et
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Ower-collateralised assets Under-collateralized assais
As at December | Carrying value of the Carrying value of the | Fair value of
31, 2016 s g Fair value of collateral ol calntvienl

__InLEf

Agriculbural 244,019 214 670.21 4,318 54,520 411 27227 908

Business 516,855,837 1,196 818 577 241,120,883 8,138,527

Consumer A58 408 4.067 958 1,361 -
_Housing 1,114,732 4. 518,203 3,547 _ -

Oilrwer 20,140 335,196 = -

Total TE2.BTE 431 1,775,855 262 295,645,073 126,364,432

{b) Credit portfolio risk from customer lending

Lending o medium-sized enterprises, i.e. larger credit exposures exceading the threshald of EUR 250,000, constitutes
a supplementary area of the Bank's business in terms of its overall strategic focus. Most of these clients are dynamically
growing enterprises that have been working with the Bank for many years. Nevertheless, the higher complexity of these
businesses raquires an appropriate analysis of the business, the project that is to be financed and any connected entities.
A strict divigion of front and back office functions is applied and requirements for both documentation and collateral are
typically more stringent. Overall, the loan portfolio of the Bank includes 148 credit exposures of more than EUR 250,000,

irv LEI
_As at December 31, 2017 Business Agricultural Housing Consumer Other Total
0-50.000 EUR 85,887 458 50,280 655 T 2E057 0 3882 147,014,078
S0.000-250.000 EUR 251774 92222184 427 510 STE A0S . 445,737,883
_Over 250.000 EUR 320,948,000 118,419,706 - - - 430367726
Total 769,447,261 260,911,556 1,154,421 602,456 3,883  1,032118,687
i LEI
As at December 31, 2018 Business Agricultural  Housing Consumer  Other Total
0-50.000 EUR 184 877816 29088505 970,483 217499 20201 285,154,303
GO000-250.000 EUR 331,757,215 101,675,268 147,706 840,270 * 454,220,547
_Ower 250.000 EUR 221,351,780 57,755,854 - 218,147 654
Total 757,986 830 798,539.625 1118278 857,768 20,201 1,058,522.504

The structure of the loan portfolio is monthly reviewed by Credit Risk Management Commiites in arder to identify potential
events which could have an impact on large areas of the loan portfolio (common risk factors) and, i necessary, limit the
exposure fowards certain sectors of the acanomy.,

According to the Credit Risk Management Policy and Strategy, all exposures exceading EUR 4 mil. are approved by the
Board of Administration. No single large credit exposure may exoceed 25% of the Bank's regulatory capital.

Larger credit exposures are paricularly analysed and monitored by the responsible employess through regular

maonitering activities enabling early detection of risks. Full information about any related parties is typically collected prior
to lending.
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Individually significant credit exposures are closely monitored by the Credit Risk Management Committes which 15 _
responsible for the approval of the allowancas for loan losses built against these exposures. The realisable net value of

collateral held Is taken into account when deciding on the allowance for impairment

For the calculation of the individual impairment & discounted cash flow approach is applied. The individual impadrment of

cradit exposures to customers is as follows:

Specific impairmeant
Gross Mt
in LEI outstanding outstanding
As at Decamber 2017 amount Allowance amount
Business 33,485 518 16,685,685 16,812,823
_Agricultural 6,067,783 2,702,242 3,365 541
Total 39,567,101 18,388,937 20,178,164
Gross Het
in LEI outstanding outstanding
Az al December 2016 amount _Allowance amount
Business 47,360,781 25814 789 216450502
Agricultural 8.081.260 3,561,176 4,520,084
Total 55,442 041 29,375,966 26,066,076

For individually insignificant credit exposures which show objective evidence of impairment, 1.e which ara in arrears for
more than 30 days, generally a lump-sum approach is applied; the impaimment is delermined depending an the number
of days in arears. In addition, individual credit exposures which are regarded as insignificant, or groups of individually
insignificant credit exposures, may be classified as impaired if events, such as political unrest. a significant economic
downturn, a natural disaster or other external events oceur In the country, For all unimpaired credit exposures a partiolio-

basad impairment is calculated (see also note (9)).

Lump - surmn & porfolio based impairment

Gross Met
in LEI outstanding outstanding
As at December 2017 amount Allowance amount
Business 735,433,959 10,329,253 725,104,716
Agriculiural 255,357,747 B,314 718 249,043,029
Hausing improvament 1,154 421 45 023 1,106,388
Consumer G056, 445 38 6845 567,763
Other 0 o ) 0
Total 992,652,686 16,730,680 975,821,806

Gross Met
i LEI outstanding outstanding
_As at December 2018 amount Allowance amount
Business T10,625,68458 12,472,878 698,152,970
Agricultural 290 458, 365 8,570,091 281 888 274
Housing improvemeant 1,118,279 130,501 Qav.ITe
Consurmer BET, T84 50,2368 aoF.533
Cthar 20,201 293 19,908
Total 1,003,080,483 21,224,000 281,856,463
e E O
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66) Financial risk
fa) Counterparty and issuer risk
Conceptual igk management framework

The objective of counterparty and issuer risk management is fo prevent the Bank from Imcurring losses caused by the
urwallingness or inability of a financial counterparty {e.g. a commercial bank) or issuer to fulfil its obligations towards the
Bank, This type of rizk iz further divided inta:
« prncipal risk: the risk of loaing the amount invasted due to the counterparty's failure to repay the principal in full
on time
* replacement risk: the risk of loss of an amount equal to the incurred cost of replacing an outstanding deal with
an equivalent one on the market
+ settiement risk: the risk of loss due to the faiure of a counterparty to honour its obligation to deliver assets as
contractually agread
= issuer risk: the probability of loss resulting from the default and insolvency of the issuer of a security

Counterparty and issuer risks arise especially from the Bank's need to invest liquidity reserve, to conclude foreign
exchange transactions, or to buy protection on specific risk positions. The liquidity is placed in the interbank market with
short maturities, typically up to three months. Foreign exchange transactions are also concluded with short maturities,
up to two days. The Bank's needs to finance its lending activities through deposits taking of customers funds and IFls
results in a signihicant exposure towards National Bank of Remania due to the mandatory reserves requirements.

The counterparty and issuer risks are managed according to the Counterparty Risk Management Policy and Strategy
{including Issuer Risk), which describes the counterpariyfissuer selection and the limit setting process, as well as by the
Treasury Policy, which specifies the st of permissible transactions and rules for their processing. As a matter of principle,
only large international banks of systemic importance and, for local currency business, local banks with a good reputation
and financial standing are eligible counterparties. As a general rule, the bank applies limits of up to 10% of its capital on
exposures to banking groups in non-OECD countries and up to 25% on those in OECD countries.

No transactions are performed unless the counterparty has been previously approved. The approval of counterparties,
along with exposure limits and maximum tenors, Bes with the Bank's ALCO, for exposure limits below the compelence
thresholds stated in the dedicaled policy, and with the Board of Administration through the Audit and Risk Managemant
Committee, for all others. The approval is based on a thorough assessment that takes into account the financial situation
of the counterparties, its reputation and its policy on AML activities.

The risk management policies forbid the Bank o conduct any speculative trading activities. For the purpase of investing
its liquidity reserve, the Bank is allowed to buy and hold securities (T-bills, bonds or cerlificates). The inherent issuer risk
is managed by the provisions of the Bank's Treasury Policy. Among cther requirements, the policy stipulales that the
securities should preferably be issued by the government or central bank of the country of operation, or by soversigns
or international andfor multinational institutions with very high credit ratings (internaticnal rating of AA- or beter),

Facts and figures concerning counterparnty and issuer risk

The main reason for incurring counterparty and issuer risk is to keep liquid assets for liquidity risk management PUrpCoSes,
i.e. as a reserve for times of polential stress, These funds are held as cash in commercial bank or central bank accounts,
as interbank placemeants, and in treasury bills issued by Romanian Ministry of Finance. As mentioned above, a substantial
part of the Bank's exposure consists of the mandalory reserve required by the central bank and held in a specific central
bank account. The Bank did not engage in any fransaction with derivatives throughout 2017

The following table provides an overview of the types of counterparts and issuers with whom the Bank concludes
fransactions.
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in LEI 2017 i % 2018 in %
Cash and cash eguivalents

Central banks 187 522 148 64.8 125 547,106 427
Mandatory reserve 85,303,579 36.1 102,074,729 34.7
Other hafamces waith Central Bank 72 218 58T 287 23472377 a8

Loans and advances to banks

Banking grous 23,697,125 139 B2 727,364 faq
ProCredit Group 33,451,758 138 80,348,168 27.3
OECD banks ) - 2162818 or

Governments 245,370 0.1 210,278 6.1

Awvallable-for-sale financial asseis
Govemments 51 746,671 2.3 | 85 668,172 281
Total MI,HE.‘HE 100.0 293,937 842 100.0

Ercludas acorusd imlereal
None of the above exposures are neither past due nor impaired.
{b) Foreign currency risk

Conceptusl risk management framawork

The assels and lisbilities of the Bank are dencminated in moare than one currency. If the assels and liabilities i one
currency do not match, the Bank has an open currency position (OGP and is exposed to potentially unfavourable
changes in exchange rates.

Due 1o the close economic links between Romania and the Eure zone countries, 2 significant part of the custarner funds
and of the customer loan portfollo is denominated in Euro. The Bank's operations in other foreign currencies are at & low
lavel and therefore do not pose a significant risk exposure.

Currency risk management is guided by the Foreign Currency Risk Managemenl Policy and Strategy, which is approved
by the Board of Administration.

The Treasury Department is responsible for continuously monitering the developments of exchange rates and foreign
currency markets. The Treasury Department alse manages the curmency positions of the Bank on a daily basis. As a
genaral principle, all currency positions should be closed at end-of-day; long or short positions for speculative purposes
are not permitted. The Bank did not engage in any foreign currency derivative transactions in 2017, The Bank’s foreign
currency exposure is monitored and controlied on a daily basis by the Back Office Department and i reported to ALCO
by the Risk Management Department

Developments in the foreign exchange markets and the currency positions are regularly reported to the Bank's ALCO,
which is authorised to take strategic decisions with regard to treasury activiies. The Bank's exposure to foreign currency
risk is reported on a monthly basis to the Audit and Risk Managemant Cammittee and quarterly to the Board of
Adminisiration.

The Bank aime 1o keep a closad currency positions and ensures that an open currancy posgition ramains within the limits
at all times. For the purpose of currency risk management the Bank has established two levels of control: early warning
indicators and limits. In cases where the positions cannat be brought back above 5% of tha regulatory capital for a single
currency, or 7.5% for the aggragate of all currencies. the bank's ALCO have to be informed and appropnale measures

taken This mechanism helps 1o ensure that the bank's total OCP does not exceed 10% of regulatory capital. Exemptions

from the limit or strategic posilions are subject to approval by the Beard of Administration. i
___;-"_qﬂ_:,.-_'rr'-"\-ll_-l\_-,-:__

dd

TR U "{;’f
g It
ST



Facls and Fgures concerning foreign currency risk

ﬁ ProCredit Bank

-

B

o
Padrred Gy

The following table shows the distribution of the Bank's balance sheet items across its material operating currencies,
which are-apart from ROMN- USD and EUR.

i LEI Other
As al December 31, 2017 Total __RON EUR USD  currencies
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 193,314,658 157 424,128 54 335208 1,655 324 -
Loans and advancss 1o banks 43,558 553 246 B5E 21,8927 045 11,268 268 256 581
Syvahable-for-sale financal assats 51,887 068 51,887 088 - = =
Loane and adwances 1o customers 005 000 0682  TES5939.954 230,080,115 0 -
Chher financiar assets 2,524 731 2824 731 ] (] (]
Total assets 1,277,825079 978422534 286,322372 12,823,592 256,581
Liabilities =
Liakilflies o hanks 235847 B57 2309847 010 847 - -
Liabilities to customers 05010210 494552023 195772358 14 405 G03 275 BE6
Liabilities to international financial
insfitubons 167,273,687 71,448 325 05 838 3582 -
Provigicons 405,825 304,510 11,045 i
Ortiver financial labdalies 3488 527 3,071 528 350 TeS 45,424 0,00
Subordnated debt 1] - 0 - =
_Total liabilities 1,116,025,906 809,313,497 292,000,391 14,432,132 279,886
Met position 161,788 173 TH.'iM.ﬂ_S}' -5,678,013 =1, 6048, 540 -3, 305
Open SPOT position (assetiliabilities)
third parties 2,272  -5ET0,228 4,193,730 1,478,770 -
Credit commitments '150131!;3_&15 172,086,290 8,131,188 129,067 -
n LEI Other
As at December 31, 2018 Total ROM EUR soD currencies
Asgets .
Cash and cash equevalents 159, BE2 B34 114, 708,324 44 83% 862 2437 448
Loans and advances fo banks B2 7232322 211,722 BO.742 120 TEd 245 QB5 131
Avaliable-for-sale financial assets 35 865 D84 86 BEG 084 0= -
Loans and advances o customerns 1,007,922 539 748370764 251,365 814 175,851 -
Cither financiar assets 2654380 3854350 ] a a
Total assetls 1,342,147,819 950,820,244 386,943,886 3,398 558 885,131
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_Liabilities
Liabilities 19 banks 128.121.882 128,120,926 1,066 - .
Liabilites to customens B36.706.432 605701653 228925670 4,258,217 820,892
Liabilities to intemational financial
institutions 211951423 91665184 120286239 . -
Provisons 3,063 686 3,047 402 15,850 43412 -
Other financeial Rabilities 5,437 405 4601527 797,880 37 808 0.00
Subordinated debt 39,747,892 - 38747 892 . e
Total liabilities 1,228,0268,830 833,136,692 389,774,597 4,296,649 820,892
Net position 114,118,389 117,883,552 -2,830,711 898,091 164,239
Open SPOT position [assetliabilites)
third parties 3,859 -2,214412 1,496,563 711,990
Credit commitments 134,835,088 127,772,351 6,894,478 168 250 -

The following table presents sensitivities of profit or loss to reasonably possible changes in exchange rates applead at

the end of the reporting period:

At 31 December 2017 At 31 December 2018
In LEI | Impact on profit or loss | Impact on profit or loss
EUR strengthening by 20% (2018 30,661 {5.831)
| strengthening by 30%] :

EUR weakening by 20% (2018 20,441 {3, 1409
| weakening by 30%) P —— -
USD strengthening by 20% (2016 {126) 4,306

strengthening by 30%%)

USD weakening by 20% (2016 (B4} 2,367
waakening by 30%) __ —
GBP strengiheming by 20% (2018 (925) {B.887)
strengihening by 30%)

GBP weskening by 20% (201& | (618} {4,683)
weakening by 30%}

Other sirengthening by 20% (2018 - 13,206
stremgthening by 30%) |
Other weakening by 200 (2016 - 7111
weakening by 30%)

Total 49,351 4,728

(e} Interest rate risk

Concaptual risk management framewark

|ntarest rate rigk arises from structural differences between the maturities of assats and those of liabilities, =.g. if a four-
year fixed interest rale loan is funded with a six-month term deposit, as well as from incongruence batween the interest
type of the assets and lisbilities, a.g. a fixed interest rate loan is financed through a variable interest rate financing facikty.
This weould expose the Bank to the risk that the funding costs will increase before the maturity date of the loan, thus
reducing the Bank's margin on the loan.
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The Bank's approach to measuring and managing interest rate risk is guided by the Interest Rate Risk Management
Palicy and Strategy which is approved by the Board of Administration.

The main indicators for managing interest rate risk measures are the potential impact on the economic value of all assets
and liabdities and the interest earnings impact The indicator economic value impact analyses tha potential loss that the
Bank would incur in the event of very unfavourable movermnents (shocks) of the interest rates on assels and llabilities.
For EUR or USD, a parallel shift of the interest rate curve by +/- 200 bps is assumed. During 2017 for the local currency,
the definition of a shock is derived fram historic interast rate volatilities over the last seven years. Tha shocks for local
currency also differentiate between intemally driven interest rates and market interest rates, in order lo capture the basis
risk. The non-nelted lotal economic value impact on the Bank's balance sheel in the standard scenario (the interest rate
shocks are applied in each currency in the direction that negatively affects the Bank) must not exceed 15% of its
regulatory capital for all interest rate risk relevant currencies. A reporting trigger for the indicator is set at 10% providing
an early waming signal.

The non-netted total potential impact of interest rate risk on the Bank's expected samings over the next twelve months
in the standard scenario is also regularly analysed. This measure indicates how the income statement may be influencad
by interast rate risk under a short-term perspective. The non-netted total 12 months interest earnings impact on the
bank’s balance sheet in the standard scenario must not exceed 10% of its regulatory capital for all interest rate risk
relevant currencies. A reporting trigger for the indicator is set at 5% providing an early warning signal.

Interest rate risk is regularly discussed by the Bank's Assets and Liabilities Management Committee. The indicalors ara
also reported to the Audit and Risk Managemeni Committee and to the Board of SAdministration

In erder to limit its interest rate risk, the Bank aims to match as much as possible the repricing maturities of its interest
bearing assets and labilities (natural hadge).

in LEl Up o 1-3 3= - 1-5 Maore than Han intenest

A% &l December 31, 2017 1 manth manths moaths mgiviFe RETE 8 years bearing Tatal
e -2

Cagh e cash squbalents B:5,303, 579 - + - - - 108,011,080 183,374 553
Laams ard advarces 1 banks 21,924,560 . 1,773,563 3 BE0, S5
Avalabie-for-sale fnancial assefs 20,108,258 - 25,788, 351 1,880,479 27,002 £1, 814,000
Loars and advances o customers B2 253473 234763043 483392107  PREISESN 2 ToaS8D 33,85 04,537,203 1,062 119,887
Total financial assets 219,600,270 256,763,043 433,000,433 05,516,137 82,754 5D 33,545 164,338,258 1,311,048,969
Liabilties

Lisbities io banks 103.070.000 30,580,720 104 820,000 1,877,120 235 847 BGT
Linnibtias 10 cuslomarns 143,08 860 JDONZOT2 7T A8 G5 109248083 7481044 337 2L, 555  TOG,010.209
Liskekhias 30 imternational fnsncial

instiutions A508ITE 913N 7EE 220932816 167,273 887
Tatsl financial labhikties 245,080,960 106,612,072 371.283.214 109,243,065 7,461,044 . 165,430,000 1.112,121,753
Total imtevest sensitivty gap 26,485,600 149,150.971 219,717,118 13,731,931 75,333,543 33,548 -206,009.342 198,815,016
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in LEI Up ta 1.3 3.8 8-12 1.6 Wore than Mo inferest

As 2 Cecember 31, 2016 1 meaith maorith monihs mankhs years 5 years hearing Total

Assobs

Cash and cagh egpivalants 102,074,720 . 58,007 805 181087624 =
Lo and advances I oanks 22705500 13,623,300 4, 354, 422 B2, 722222
Austatie-lor-sake Trancal assets 52,028,308 32 040,384 222 914 B5, 852 086

Lo and Advances o costomers 200,402 764 221.898.984 336026294 121274 7BA 17564076 218787 70038833 1,058,522,604

Total financial assats £13,102,993 228 450,862 371767158 171.374,TBE 17884070 26,757 176, 664,084 1,389,120,436

Liabifities

Liseiflias 10 banks 5 . 104,520,000 22470000 ) - 11319982 138121.682
Listiliies 0 cusbomers 142 D36,E65 164 426,418 156.77E.BER  BES0A204 5146000 af, TE2 2B5 554,534 B30, FOG,432 -
Lisndies in imamational fnancial

irmlilud s 113,524,772 - BEB2BESD 211881432
Suborcinaled el - s 2 L X - 3;T4En 0 IRV W TATSEE

Total financial liabilies 147,008 665 164,426,415 ITaGa1 441 108,378,254 6146808 39,780,407 386,136,443 1,219,537.738 -
Tatal Wierest sensitity gap 371,146,328 124,024,143 2864481 12885831 12,417,170 -39,863.610 B0BATZITS 150,852,608

Facts and figures conceming interest rale risk

As specified above, the main interest rate nisk indicators are the economic value impact indicatar and the interast eamings -
impact. The economic value impact indicater measures the impact of interest rate changes on all interest rate-sensitive
on- and offi-balance sheet flems and quantifies the loss in value of the bank given certain changes of interest rates, As
described above, the calculation of the economic value impact indicator is based on different parallel shifts of the interast
rate curves. For EUR and USD a shift of +/- 200 bps is applied; for the local currency the shift is defined in terms of a
historical worst case (+/- 542 bps for internal rates and /- 117 bps for market rates, as of December 2017).

The following table presents the economic value impact and intarest eamings indicator under the standard scenarno, as —
of December 2017 and December 2016,

in '000 LEX 2017
Currancy Interest rate sock 'Economic value impact _ |nterest earnings Impact
Local -542 bps/ -117 bps 7,486 1,858
EUR -200 bps -2 -1.640
ush -200 bps g : i
Total _TAT3 19
in 000 LEI 2016

_Currency Intarast rate sock Economic value impact __Interest earnings Impact
Local -542 bps! -295 bps 4,440 -3,377
EUR =200 bps -5,028 -1,804
UsD -200 bps 0 :
Total -589 -5,181
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(el Liguidity risk
Concepltual risk management Framewark

The Bank's quidity risk management ("LRM") system is tailored to the specific characteristics of the Bank. On the assets
side the loan portfolio & the largest single component, and is primarily funded by clients’ deposits, on liabilities side. The
logn portfolio is characterised by a large number of exposures to small businesses and is therefore highly diversified.
The majority of the loans are disbursed as instalmant term loans, and the default rate is low. Thersfore, cash flows are
highly predictable. All of these factors justify the use of a relatively simple and straightforward LRM systam.

Liquidity risk in the narrowest sense (risk of insolvency) is the possibility that the Bank will no longer be able to mest its
current and fulure payment obligations in full, or in a timely manner. Liquidity risk in a broader sense (funding risk) is the
danger that additional funding can no longer be obtained, or can only be obtained at increased marke! inlerast rates.

The Bank’s ALCO determines the liquidity strategy of the Bank and sats the liguidity risk imits. The Treasury Department
manages the Bank's liquidity on a daily basis and is responsible for the execution of the ALCO's decisions. Compliance
with strategies, policies and limils is constantly monitored by the Back Office Department and by the Risk Management
Crapartmant,

The standards that the Bank applies in this area are established through the Liquidity Risk Management Policy and
Strategy and the Treasury Policy. Limit breachas and exceptions fo these policies are subject 1o decisions of the Board
of Administration. The local reguirements are complemented by the tools used at the ProCredit group level, thus
enhancing local ligusdity risk management,

Traasury manages liguidity on a daily bas:s using a cash fiow analysis. This tool is designed to provide a realistic picture
of the fulure liquidity situation. It includes assumptions about deposit and loan developmenis and helps forecasting
liguidity risk indicators.

The key tool for measuring liquidity risk is a forward-locking liguidity gap analysis, which shows the contractual maturity
structure of the assets and liabilities and estimates future funding needs based on certain assumptions. Starting with the
estimation of the future liquidity in a normal financial environment, the assumpiions are increasingly tightenad in order to
analyse the Bank's liguidity situation in & worst-case scenario (siress lest).

The main indicator of short-term liquidity is the sufficient liquidity indicator {*SLI"), which compares the amounts of assets
available and liabilities assumed to be dug within the next 30 days. It must not fall below 1, This implies that the Bank
always has sufficient funds to be able to repay the liabiliies simulated to be due within tha next 30 days. Another important
indicator, Liquidity Coverage Ratio ('LCR”) that came in force In 2015, with the following limits: starting October 1st, 2015
;Ejlntﬂieaat 60%; T0% starting January 1st, 2016; 80% starting January 1st, 2017 and at least 100% starting January 1st,

This is complemented by the early warning indicators, the foremost being the highly liquid assets indicator, which relates
highly liquid assets to customer deposits and also the liquidity coverage indicator

The Bank also analyses its liquidity situation from & more structural perspective, taking into account the liquidity gaps in
later time buckets and additional sources of potential iquidity. The liquidity position also takes nlo account credit lines
that can be drawn by the Bank with some time delay, and other assels which lake some time to liquidate.

In addition t& prescribing the close monitoring of these early warning indicatars, the Liguidity Risk Management Policy
and Strategy also defines reporting triggers. If the highly liquid asset indicator drops below 10%, or if the depositor
concentration rises above 15%, or the liquidity coverage indicator is below 90% the ALCO takes decisions on appropriate
measuras
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In arder to safeguard the liquidity of the Bank even in stress situations, the potential liguidity needs in different scenanos -
are determined. The Bank has a liguidity contingency plan that establishes the measures that should be taken if a crisis
situation appears at the level of the Bank or the banking system. The liguidity contingency plan is supported by a stand-
by line from ProCredit Holding, amounting to EUR 10 millien at the end of December 2017.

The internal liquidity management framework complements the regulatory framework, composed of the Liquidity Indicator
and of the Liquidity Coverage Ratio, both at comfortable levels at the and of December 2017 (LCR stood at 148%).

The Bank alsc aims to diversify its funding sources. Depositor concentralions are manitored in order lo avosid
dependencies on a few large depasitors. According to the bank’s internal guidelines a significant depositor concantration
exists if the 10 largest depositors exceed 15% of total customer deposits. This serves as an early warning sigral and
requires the reasons and mitigating measures to be reported to the ALCO and to the Audit and Risk Management
Committee.

The Bank alsa minimises iis dependency on the interbank market. The policies stipulate that the total amount of money
market liabilities may not exceed 40% of its available lines and overnight funding may not excead 4% of total liabilities.
Higher limits nead to be approved by Board of Administration.

Facts and figures concarming liquidity fsk

The following lable shows the liquidity gap analysis, L.e. the {undiscounted) cash flows of the financial assels and financial
lighilities of the bank according to their remaining contractual maturities. The remaining contractual maturity &= defined
as the period betwean the balance sheet date and the contractually agreed due date af the assst or liability, or the due
date of a partial payment under the contract for an assat or lability.
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Due to the fact that not all cash flows will ocour in the fulure as specified within the contracts, the Bank applies
assumplions, espacially regarding deposit withdrawals.

The goal is to always have sufficient liquidity in order to serve all expected liabilities within the next month. From a
technical point of view this implies that the Bank's available assets should aweys exceed the expected liabilties, as
calculated by applying the above assumptions

The expectad liquidity gap quantifies the potential liquidity needs within a certain time period if it has a negative value,
and it shows 8 potential excess liquidity, if it has a positive one. This calculation incledes positive excess values from the
prévious time buckets. The expected liquidity gap s the basis for the sufficient liquidity indicatar which, as at end of
December 2017 stood at 1.18, with & minirmurm lrrdt of 1.

The Bank aims 1o rely primarily on customer deposits for its funding. This source is supplemented by funding received
from intemnational financial institutions (IFis). which provide earmarked funds under targeted fingncing programmes [@.q.
for lending to SMEs). In order to further diversify its sources of funds, the Bank also maintains relationships with other
banks, especially for shori-term liquidity lines. In addition, ProCredit Holding and ProCredit Bank Garmany provides
shart- and long-term funding.

In order to maintain a high level of diversification among its customer deposits, the Bank has implemented a concentration
trigger, which aims at ensuring that the ten largest customer deposits do nol exceed 15% of total depogits, The ten
largest customer deposits in total deposits made up 13% as at December 2017, below the warning limit of 15%
established through the Liquidity Risk Management Palicy and Strategy.

67) Operational risk

Operational nsk is recognised as an important risk factor for the Bank, given that it relies on decentralised processing
and decision-making. In line with Basel definition, the Bank defines operational risks as the risk of loss resulting from
inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems andior external events, This category includes all “risk
events” in the areas of personnel, processes, and Information technology, A dedicated Operational Risk Management
Policy and Strategy establishes the principles of operational risk managemeant.

The overall framework for managing operational risks is best described as a complementary and balanced system
compriging the following key components: Corporate Culture, Governance Framework, Policies and Procedures, Risk
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Assessments, New Risk Approvals (NRAs), Key Risk Indicators and the Risk Event Database. While the Corporate
Culture, the Governance Framework, and Policies and Procedures define the basic cultural and arganisational
parameters, Risk Assessments, New Risk Approvals (NRAs), Key Risk Indicators and the Risk Event Database form the
key instrumants with which the risk management process Is executed.

The overall chjectives of the Bank's approach to the management of operational fisks are;
- o understand the drivers of the cperational risks
ta be able to identify critical issues as early as possible
to avold losses causad by operational risks, and
- toensure efficient use of the capital.

To delivar on these goals the following tools and processes have been implemented within the framework outlined above.
They are presentad in the sequence in which they are used within the operaticnal risk management process. This process
is subdivided inta the following phases: idenfification, evaluation, monitaring, centrol, and follow up.

Identification
~  Annusal operational and fraud risk assessments
Mews risk approval (NRA) process
—  Risk identification and documentation in the Risk Event Database (RED)
—  Ad hoc identification of patential risks

s Evaluation ! quantification
~  Agreed standards to quantify rieks

»  Monitoring and control

—  Process owners' responsibility to menitor risks
Key risk indicators (KRIs) and operational risk repons, risk bearing capacity calculation and manitoring
in the Operational Risk Management Committee and Audit and Risk Management Committas

~  Management summaries for the significant risk events

—  Implementation of measures to avoid, reduce or mitigate the risks depending on priorities, efficiancy
considerations and ragulations

—  Transfer of risk to an insurer, if appropriate

+ Issue tracking / follow-up tables for material action plana
Follow-up of the measures taken by the Operational Risk Managemant Committes or by the Bank's
Managears

To constantly enhance the professional standards of the Bank, in 2047 it continued to make use of lecal training facilities,
the regional ProCredit Academy and the international PraCredit Academy In Firth, Germany. Training programmes for
candidates for management positions include various sessions focusing explicitly on operational risk management. Risk
awareness training is defivered annually to all staff as well as to all newly hired amployess

58) Reputational risk

Reputational risk is recognised as a significant risk to which the Bank is exposed. It is defined as the current or future
risk that the profits or capital would be negatively affected due 1o the unfavourable image of the Bank as perceived by
clients, counterparties, shareholders, investors or suparvisory authorities.

The Bank monitors all events with potential reputational implications through operational risk events identification,
continuous moniloring of the media exposura and monthly monitoring of customer complaints. Tha monitering results
are reported to the Operational Risk Management Commiltes that may take measures to mitigate the effects of a
reputational risk event.
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The Bank aims lo keap the degree of responsibility and professionalism of its employeas at a high level in order to
mitigate its exposure to reputational risk. Therefore, the various training programmes specified in the previous section
have become part of the Bank's organisational cullure. Relationships with clients have slways been based on the
principles of transparency and responsibility, thus fostering a good image for the Bank.

589) Compliance Risk

The Compliance risk is defined as the risk to suffer the sanctions set by the regulatory framewark, to register significant
losses or reputational impact by not complying with the regulatory framework provisions, internal regulations or other
appbcable bast practices

The management of compliance risk i performed at the Bank level within three commitiees. The financial covenants
included in the refinancing contracts of the Bank are monitored on a menthly basis within the ALCO and reported to the
Audit and Risk Management Committee. The risks regarding money laundering and financing of terrorism activities are
monitered in the AML&CFT on a quarterly basis, The changes in legislation and their implementation are monitored in
the OPRC on a monthly basis.

The Bank's organizalional structure includes the Compliance Department that has the role of assisting the Bank's
Managers in order to properly manage tha compliance risk,

60) Business Risk (including strategic risk)

The strategic risk represents the current or future risk of negative impact on eamings and capital arising from changes
in the business environment or from adverse business decisions, improper implementation of decisions, or lack of
rasponsa to changes in the business environment.

The Bank includes the business risk (which includes the stralegic risk) in the category of significant risks as, according
to the developments of the past years in terms of the changes in the business environment mostly triggered by the
financial crisis, we faced significant problems regarding the achievement of the business objectives. In these
circumstances, the Bank's Board of Administration defines the business risk target profile in order to control the Bank's
axpesure to this risk.

The exposure to this risk is monitored regularly in the monthly meetings of the ALCO,

61) Organization of the risk management function

The ultimate responsibility for the risk management of the Bank lies with the Bank's Managers and with the Board of
Administration. The risk management function s located at the level of Risk Management Department, which is
responsible for the management all significant risks.

The Hisk Management Department is subordinated to the General Manager from an administrative point of view and to
the Board of Administration from a functional point of view.

The Risk Management Depariment is responsible for the identification, evaluation, monitoring and reporting of risk
exposuras. The personnel of Risk Management Department is independent of the activities monitored and contralled, as
is not performing any business related activities. The Risk Management Depariment repors regularly to the
corresponding organisational units at PreCredit Holding

The Bank’s exposure to risks is monitored and controlled by the Audit and Risk Management Committes, a permanent,
specialized committee of the Board of Administration. Detailed manitoring of specific risks is performad by various other
committees, at Bank level: the Credit Risk Management Committee {credit risk), the Assets and Liabiliies Management
Committee (counterparty risk, liguidity risk, and market risks), the Operational Risk Management Committee {operational
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risk and reputational risk) and the AML&CFT Committee {anli-maoney laundering and combating the financing of
terrorism}.

The Bank's risk policies address all significant risks and set standards that enable risks fo be identified early and o be
managed appropriately. The Risk Management Department carries out regular monitering to ensure that the total volume ™

of all risks incurred does not exceed the limits approved. The results of the monitoring are reported to the specialized
committeas at Bank lavel, to the Audit and Risk Management Committee and to the Board of Administrabon.

F. Additional Notes

62) Fair value of financial Instruments

The following tables give an overview of the carying amounts and fair values of the financlal assets and liabilities
according to the classes of financial instruments. defined in accordance with the business of the Bank.

2017
inLEI o
Financial asvets Camying valus Total fir valus
| aas &G BOVBNCES 1o banks 11 BO8 553 51608 553 l
Shares at cost 27 D2 27
Lgans and advances o cuslomaers 1032 119667 1,028 433 H70
Total 1,085 845 242 1,062,150 434 ==
Financial LiabiliSes Camying value Teotal fair value
Lies 1o baks 230 847 857 240811 751 B
Lssbabias o cusinmars 705 010210 4 (30 220
L il b iplmmiabonal financial maniubons 187 273667 {BE 00 282 L
Suborchinsbed dedil o 0
Total 1412431754 1,113 586 323
2018
i LEI
Financial asssts Carmying value Total fair vaius =
Lpans ard advancas 0 banks B2 TR A2 TI3 223
Sharas al cost #7002 27 D02 e
Loans and advantes i cusinmens 1058 522 504 1 0BT B90 271
Tomal 1141272728 1,170,540 485
Finaneis Linbiltes Carmying valus Todnd falrvaiue
Liabiltes i barks 28,121 992 29 (83 402
L imbilfes 1o Cosibmans B35 T 4 52 Ba0158 346 .
Listibines jo imemahcnal fimmnciad esdtulions 211 851 422 211 856 201
Subomdinatad debt 30,747 892 3o AT &0
Toul 1218527739 1.220 853 501 .
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in LEI of which
Financial assels Category Carrying valus Total fair value  Lewveld Lavel 2 Level 3
Avaiable-for-aake linancil assels AIS 51,887 068 £1,8087 068 - 51,887 068
Total E1,887 088 51,887 068 . £1, 887,068 -
016
in LEI of which
Financial assels Category Carrying wabe Total fair value Level 1 Lavel 2 Laval 3
Aupilable-far-sale francial assels AR5 85,855,084 85 B5 5,064 - 45,585, 004
Total 85,865,004 A5 pE5 084 - 85,565,084

The fair value of claims and term deposits al variable rates of interest is identical to their camying amounts, The fair value of
claims and liabilities al fixed rates of interest was defermined using the discounted cash flow mathad, using monay marked
interest rates for financial instruments with similar default risks and similar remaining terms to maturity.

The estimated fair value of the receivables comesponds 1o the discounted amount of the estimated expected future cash
flows, Le. nat of allowance for impairment, The expected cash flows are discounted to fair value at the current market intarest

rates,

Far the fair value maasurement of financial instruments which are carried at fair value only in rare circumstances is the fair
value calculated based on current observable market data by using a valuation technigue. The valuation techniques applied
are referencas to the current fair value of other instruments that are substantially the same and discounted cash flow analysis
using observable market parameters, e g, interest rates and foreign exchange rate.

The fair value of lnans and advances to customers was determined using the discounted cash flow method, using the current
market rates for end of the year, published by the Bank on its website for loans with similar default risks and similar remaining
terms ta maturity,

The Fair value of liabilities to customers was determined using the discounted cash flow method. using the cument market
rates for end of the year, published by the Bank on its website for deposits with similar remaining terms to maturity. For
deposits with no stated malurily (Le. Current Accounts and Saving Accounts) the fair value it's equal to carmying value in the
balance sheat,

In case coservable market rates are not available to determine the fair value af financial liabilities measured at amortized
cost, ProCredit Bank Treasury rates are used as an input for a discounted cash flow model, Treasury department rates are
determined considering the cost of capital depending on currencies and maturities plus a rsk margin that depends on an
internal risk raling for each institution. These intemal rates are regulary compared to those appled for third party
transactions and are therefore in compliance with the ams lengths principle.

There have been no transfers between the input levels of the fair valua hierarchy.
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63) Contingent liabilities and commitments

As at 31 December

_Im LE1 2017 20186
Sureties and guarantees 6077 655 4 553,768 -
Perfarmancse bonds 2,732 197 3,598 737
Documentary and commarcial letters of credit 129,067 144,703
Commitrmants to extend credit 171,377 817 126,437,880
Total 180,316,546 134,835,088

The above table discloses the nominal principal amounts of contingent liabilities, commitments and guarantess, Le. the
amounts at risk. should confracts be fully drawn upen and clients defaull it is expected thal a significant portion of
guarantees and commitments will expire without being drawn upen; therefore the total of the confractual amounts s not
representative of future Bquidity requirements. An estimate of the amount and timing of outflow s nol practicable. No
irrevocable commitments to extand credit exist

64) Related party transactions

The Bank entered into a number of banking transactions with related parties in the normal course of business

The list of related parties and description of the nature of relationship s as follows:

E - Name _ Relationship
PraCredit Holding &G & Co, KGaA Shareholder
ZEITINGER INVEST GMBH ("£17),
Frankfurt am Main, Germany :I Shemhakiar -
ProCredit Bank Germany Bank of the group
ProCradit Bank Bulgaria Bank of the group
ProCredit Bank Macedonia Bank of tha group —
ProCraedit Bank Serbia Bank of the group
ProCradil Academy Macadonmen Group company
Shipeke Kosovo - Quipu Ges. Group company P
ProCredit Academy Group company
|ﬂ.|ipu GmBH Group company |

The ulimate parent company of the bank is ZEITINGER INVEST GMEH. During the year ended 31 Decamber 2017 and
the year ended 31 December 2018 the following transactions were camiad cul with the shareholders and other related parties
from the Bank and Group:

in LEI 1.1.-31.12.2017 1.1.-31.12.2018
I ncome 63452 11,346 -
Expense 18,989,731 18,819,025

Net income 18,926,279 -18,607,5679
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Shareholder's current balances with the Bank other parties in special relationship {at year end)
Az at 31 December

in LEI 2017 2016
_Assets _

Loans and advances to banks 33,451,755 80,345, 168

Other racaivabla 130,181 1,687 158

Total Assels 33,581,936 81,935,326
FL_}:-!hililin §

Liabilities to banks 173,807 227 128,120,926

Liabilities to customers(including ProCradit Halding) 45 428 006 288 513

Subordinated debl - 39,747 892

Other payable 383,187 __f83 7o

Total Liabilities 220,617,420 168,841,041

Off-balance sheet positions N

Cradit line 46,597,000 45,411,000

Total Off-balance sheet positions 46,697,000 45.411,000

Loans and advances to banks represent nostre accounts to ProCredit Germany having interest between 0.85% and
1.35%.

Liabilities 1o banks represent infercompany loans abtained in local currency baaring interest from 1,97% o 5.74%.
65) Management compensation

During the reporting period, total compensalion paid to the management of the bank amounted fo:

in LEI 1.1.-31.12.2017 1.1.-31.12.2016
Management board salaries G644, 148 794, 687
Total 644,148 794,687

The members of the Supervisory Board didn't receive any compensation from the Bank

66) Number of Employees

2017 2016
Avarage At year end Average At year end
General Manager 1 0 1 1
Depuly General Manager 2 2 1 1
Head Office Staff 138 128 157 1589
Branches/Agencies Staff 79 69 142 100
Total Staff 189 261

67) Significant post-balance sheet events

Thare were no events after the balance shesat date. S o
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For the balance sheet and the income statemant the following exchange rates ware applied for convenience transiation:

2m7 2018
At balance Avarage for At balance Average for
Currency sheet date the year sheet date the year
code ;
EUR 46597 45679 4.5411 4 4508
uso 38915 4 0498 4 3033 40552

69) Address and general information

ProCredit Bank 5.4, is domiciled in Romania. The Bank was established in R
the Bank was known as Microfinance Bank MIRO S.A), and is licensad by

banking activities.

Thea Bank operates through
December 2016: &) and 2 agancies (31 Decem

amania in July 2002 (until Novembar 2004
the Mational Bank of Romania to conduct

its head office located in Bucharest and through its netwerk consisting of & branches (31

ber 2016: 11} localed in Romania Mareover, the Bank designed, during
the year 2017, 11 Self-Service areas(24/7 zones)

The current registered office of the Bank is kcaled at:

G2 — 64 Buzesl Sireet,
Bucharest, Sector 1

Romania

The Bank is managed by a Board of Directors made up of 5 members (31 December 20185 mambers), lead by a

Chairperson, The composition of the Board of Direclors was as follenars:

Position

Chairparson
Member
Member
Marmibear

hdember

31 Decamber 2017

Rainer Peter Oitanstein

Glan Marco Falice
Andrei Gaorgescu

Antie Marielie Gerhold

Iir Adiu

Andraea lehim
Head of Finance D
I

31 December 2016
Rainer Pater Oftenstiein
Gian Marco Felice
Antje Marialie Gerhald
Helan Alexander

e Adiu
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General Information

ProCredit Bank 5.4, (the “Bank” or "ProCredil Bank™) was established in Fomania in May 2002 (up o November
2004 the Bank was known as Microfinance Bank MIRD 5.4)

ProCredit Bank, the only bank in Romarnia with 100% German shareholders 15 a specialized bank for small and
meadmim-sized enferpriges, while at the same a full-fledged bank addressing both business and private clienis by
providing a wide range of modern banking services. In our cperations, we adhere 1o a number af core principles
wi value iransparency in our communication with our customers, we do not promoie conswmer lending, we strive
to minimise our ecological focdpring, and we provide senvices which are based both on an endersianding of each
client's situation and on a sound fimancial anahyss

Im our operations with business clients, we focws on small and medium-sized buesiness cliants, whils the former
very small-sized clients segment continues to be exited. The sirategic objective of being the bank for SME= is
complemented by a reshapad and forward-looking sirategy regarding private mdividuals

The Bank operales through the Head Office localed in Bucharest and through 18 network congisling of & branches
and 2 agencies located in Romania.

The current registered office of the Bank is Iocated at: 52 = 64 Buzesti Streel, Sector 1, Bucharesl, Romania,

Ouwr business resulls in 2017 were influenced by the stialegic reorentalion lowards small and medium-sized
husiness chents and the exit of the former micre and very small business client category. In order fo support the
operafion and developmenl of our business chents In this challenging environmenl, we conlinued 1o provide
professional financial solutions and adegquate, fransparent and affordable services.

The key compefitive advardages of the bank in the marke] ane the following:

a.  Sirong foous on the target market that allows the bank o position idself 2s one of the l=ading banks in the
niche of providing lending and banking sendces o small and medium-sized businesses,

b. Strong clent relationship model based on well-trained staff (Businese Client Advisors), who can dedicate
ime o the SME clients in order to undersiand their indnidual needs and provide tailored finanging
solutions;

¢ Beller credil risk assessment of the client, as ilustrated by the significantly lower defaull rates of the bank
compared to the market,

d.  Madermn, convenient and focused outlel netaork with 2407 service

Ciur approach on recruitment and traiming continued to be based on constant long-term investment in our staff. The
quality of the stalf, especially the quality of our Business Clent Advigors proved to be ceniral in understanding the
clients’ needs and in providing tailor-made financial services 1o our SME chients,

Al the end of 2017, compared fo 2018, the main indicaiors wera:

Ksioators IMA2.20186 IEUJ 1122017 1‘IiliE}IIi % change
Total loan pordfalio 1,058,523 1,032,120 -2, 48%
Tolal assels 1,383,709 1,311,583 -5.21%
Total customers deposits 230, 706 T05,010 -16.04%
Barrowed funds 211,951 167 274 -21.08%
Share capital 150,682 1059 062 24 66%
Equity 155,680 195,538 25.60%
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Financials results

The total aesets decreased by 5.21%, 88 compared to 2016, mosily due to the decrease of the loan porifolio by
2.48% and also through the decrease of the lpans and advances to banks, s value reaching Lei 23.7 milion al
the end of 2006 (31 December 2016: Lei B2.7 million). The main reason for the evolution was the streamiine of
the oullal nebwork on the basis of the sirategic recdentation towards small and medium-sized business chents
and the exit of the very small business cieni category.

The Bank mamtained, throughout 2017, an adequate kevel of capital adegquacy.

In 2017, the Bank recorded a nel profit of Lei 0.5 milion, decreasing as compared 1o the previous year (31
December 2016; Led 4.5 millicn). The largest part of the Bank's incomes came from the lending operations, which
accountad for more than 709 of the iolal incomes, Fees thal are not relaled to the lending aclivity, represent a
relatively small part of the total income, but the ned fee income this year amounled fo LE| B.2 million. The cosl
income ratio al the end of 2017 was 104% (31 December 2015: 84 3%,

Businass Clients

The main business siralegic direction remained the same, namely o focus on Small and Medium business
clienis; the Bank made a clear-cut decision to cease sarving most of the former Yery Small clients. The Bank's
posifioning stems in a focused and specialized business model - being a high quality SME bank - and in its being
a8 part of an intarmational, Garmany-basad, banking growp

The siralegic changes mentioned above led o a growth of loan portfolo for the main buginess ines (Small and
Medium) around Lei 108 million, but in the sama time, the level of tha exit loan portfolio decreased with Les 154
milllian, Moreover, the Bank sold in 2017 & part of s nonperforming loan porifolio to specialized recovery
companias, in amount of Lei 11.3  million in order b maximize he recoveries and bo aptimize the recovery
process. As resull, e gross loan portfolio decreased with 2.48% compared to previous year, reaching a total
valume of Led 1,032 million

As in previous years, in 2017 the Bank focused on the quality of the loan porifolio and kept # under control by
idantifying potential problems with the cienis in a mely manner, and inlensively warking oul The problemalic
EXPOEUTES.

Banking Services

in view of servicing its clients in @ modern, fast, cost-effective and reliabde manner which shall be further reflected
in increasing eficiency and reduce overall costs by shifting the basic fransaclions towards aulomaled channels,
the Bank have continwously invested in electronic channels. The concapt of 24-hour zones provides clients with
the possibility lo perform various cash and non-cash operations via modemn banking terminals, any time of the
day, including oulsida ragular warking haurs

By furthir developing of this modemn concept of doing business, which shifts basic transactiens fram the front
office to the terminals, the Bank will continue fo move towards having business units with a more advisony-
oriented robe, rather than an operational one. Our dient advisers are thus able to dedicate more quality time to
acquiring new chents of the desired profile and 1o advise chents on the services that best sull their needs

Throughout 2017 due fo the joint institutional efforts put into sutomating clients’ transaciions, the Bank managed
to significantly reduce the cperational workload of client advisers and Thus focus sirongly on growing business
with privaie clients. As of end of 2017, the overall automation degres slands at 89%, which s to be translated into
cur clients understanding and embracing the advantages of the fast, reliabde, less coglly, no time dependent way
of doing their daily operations towards which they also have Iull condred on and less operational risk as well,

The: main source of funding for the Bank remains the custiomer funds. The Bank's private individual client profile
are higher and middle-income professionals, such as employees, independent professionals, sell-employed,
freelancers, plus the owners, managers and family members of our business clienis etc. To those clients, the
Bank provides straightforward and comsenient senioes with fair and Irangparent pricing,
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In parallel, the Bank stralegically aims o also aliract more funding from business dients by establishing long-
ferm relationships with them and becoming the sole financial parmer for small businese clients and the main
bark for medium buginess cients

Branch Network

The focus on amall and medium business clients triggered changes in the outhet network and in the staff siruchere
and number. The owllet network undergone a8 major streamlining as the number of branches deceased to six,
wihile the number of service poinds decreased fo fwo. As part of the optimization process, three of the semnvice
points, were redesigned and fransformed inte machines-ooly locations, offering full range of banking Senices
available fo chents rowund-the-clock. The aforementioned transformation of the outlet network B the natural
outcorme of the Bank's stralegy lowards digitalization and aulomation of banking operalions and clienis’
fransactions and conssquently of the channels of interaction with clisnts.

Staff and Staff Development

ProCradit Bank's employees has been representing, since the very beginning of iis business activily, the mosd
important resource of the nstilution, which iz why in 2047, as it happened In the previous years, the main
concern was the staff selection, training and conlinuous development. In 2017, ProCredit Bank confinued o
invest heavily in the professional training of its new employees that from the very beginning of their aclivity are
anterning o ProCradit Entry Programmea. Being aorganized at the intemational leved since 2015, the programma
proved to be a very good opportunity fo broaden the general knowledge of our parlicipants, mainly from cultural
diversity poind of view. Az the parlicipanis are having different educational backgrounds and different previous
experiences, e &-month fraining programme gives them an opporunity for further exchange of views and
expenences within the theosetical tralning that s organized in ane of the training centres in Serbia or Kosowo, The
participants that graduated the programme in 2017, continued their profassional development with further local
specialized theoretical and practical frainings in the very beginning for the ciient adviger funclion and later an for
different other poslions bolh within branches and Head Ofice

Besides the preparation for the new colleagues, last year a strong emphasis continued to be put on the guality of
all personnal, infansive frainings being provided on both national and Group level. Thus, eighl employess,
including both manggers and specialist siaff, attended ProCredit Management Academy ProCredil Bankers
Academy in Germany. Additonally a strong focus continued to be placed on English knowledge in order to
provide the necessary language ekills for further Group level trainings organized for all ProCredit Banks' siaff.
Thusg, 16 parlicipants from Romania attended the § weeks language cowrses in the Language Cenfres, Besides
thesa above mentioned, colleagues from both Head Ofice and Branches parbicipated in regional seminars or
were part of international exchange programmes at the Group level, siming fo incresse the professional
slandards of our stalf and 1o enhance the undersfanding of our Growp business strategy.

Business Ethics and Environmental Standards

Part of the overall miasion of the ProCredit growp is to set standards i the financial sectors in which we operate,
We want o make a difference nol only in terms of the largel groups we serve and the quality of the inancial
sarvices wa provide, but also with regard to business ethics, Dur sfrong corporate values play a key rode in this
respect. The five ProCredit values represent the backbone of owr corporate culture and are descussed and
actively applied in our day-lo-day operations, Moreover, they are reflected in the ProCredil Code of Conduct,
which franslates ProCredit group’s ethical principles into practical guidelines for all ProCredit staff. In order fo
ensure hat staff fully understands all of the principles thal have been defined, induction seminars now have 3
saparate section for the study of the Code of Conduct and its imporiance for &ll the membsers of our team. And 1o
ensure that the employees respect their commitment to the high ethicel standards and that they are informed
about the new subjects and evolutions of an ethical nalure for our institution, refreshment seminars are regulary
organized for our emplovees. These avents allow the existing =taff to analyse recent case studies and io discuss
any unclear aspects,

Ancther manner of ensuring that owr institution adheres to the highest elhical standards s our consistent
application of imternational best-practice methods and procedures to protect curselves from being used as a
vahicle for money laundening of other illegal activities such as the financing of leronst activiies, The important
focus here is the “know your customes” pranciphe, and, in line with this principle, the performance of 3 sound
reporling activity and the compliance with the applicable regulations. Al group level, updated polices are
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infroduced for the prevention of money laundering and fraud, o éensure comgpliance with both German and
Romanian regulatony sfandards,

FroCredit Bank has implemenied an emaronmental management system based on continuous assessment of the
Iean porifolio according lo environmental criteria, an in-deplh analysis af all economic actvities which potentially
imvolve environmental risks, and the rejection of loan applcations from enterprises engaged in aciivilies which
are deemed emironmentally hazardous and appesr on our inslitution’'s exclusion lisl, By incorporating
environmental issues into the loan approval process, ProCredit Bank is also able fo raise its clients’ ovarall level
of emvironmental swareness, The Bank only provides financing for environmentally scund projecta. Thus,
ProCredit Bank's clents must comply with the reguirements stipulaed by local health, safety and anvironmental
legislation. When conducting credid analyses and making lending decisions, and also when moniloring loans, the
bank invanably gives due consideration (o ecological and emaronmental factars.

Risk Management

Dwuring 2017, the Bank continued to monitor all ralevant risks and further refined #s risk management tools. The
core element of an effective sk management aystem i a well-developed “risk awareness culiure® — a corporate
cullure in which embedded risks are recognized by each empioyves, the potential mpact of these nsks is fully
undersiond, and responsibility for confrofling individual risks s assumed by the relevant staff members n
acoordance with their specfied dulies and tagks

The Bank's prudent risk management policies are defined on a comprehensive, wide instilulional basis by the
Bank's Managess and approved by the Board of Admenisiration. The risk management and risk condrol functions
are ensuwed by the Risk Management Depariment and the Credit Risk Depariment, established at the level of
Head Dffice. The decisions regarding lhe decrease of or the acceptance of exposures b risk are made within the
Risk Managament Committses.

ProCredit Bank aims al identifying, measuring, assessing, monioring and controlling the risks i encounters
effectively and to permanently maintain the capital at a level which is appropriate to the assumed risks. Central to
our risk management strategy Is our simple and transparent business model, a thorough understanding of our
customers, well-rained staff, and a conservalive approach to financial risks. The Code of Conduct complements
the risk management stralegy

Aocording to its internal siatutes, the Bank does not engage in speculstive operations and mamntains s cumency
posilian cloged,

The principles, the rsk profile and the main instruments wsed in the management of risks are sel by the Bank's
Board of Administration through the risk management policies and sirategies. Thus, the Bank has defined risk
management policies and sirategies for the credit risk, counterparly nsk, foreign currency nek, infersst rate risk,
Bguidity risk, operational rsk, fraud risk, reputational sk and the rsks related o oulsourced activilies. Moreover,
the Bank has in place an Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAARP), in line with the established
rigk profile, as well as a general framework for siress lesting on the rigk profile and capital adequacy, The sk
managemant and control process is carmied oul both &l the level of the Bank as a whole, and at the level of each
defined business line.

The Bank's Managars ara responsibée for implementing the risk management sirategy and for the funclicnality of
the Risk Managemen! Commitlees, according fo their stalules. The Audit and Risk Management Commilbes s a
Board level commilias responsble for addressing all significant rsks from the siralegic perspeclive. The uppar
managemeni level commitiess ihat are: the Asseis and Liabilities Management Committes, the Credit Risk
Management Committes, the Operational Risk Management Commilles and The Commities for Preventing and
Combating Money Lawndarnng and Terrarism Activilies Funding address the individual rigks.

The Risk Managemen! Deparimenl develops and implemenls risk managermenl and operalional contral. The
department monitors all relevant risks and risk positions on a confinwous basis through regular guantitative and
gqualitative reparts o ensure that the total amount of all rsks incured does not exceed The fsk-bearing potential
of the Bank. All procasses and areas of operalions (includeng branches) are assessed, on a regular basis, by the
Infernal Audit Department, being subject to & risk sssesament. Amaong other things, the awdit missions are
desigrad to iderdify fraud risks and alert the Bank's Managers so thal they can take prevanfive measures
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The Bank's exposure 1o risks and the curent capital adequacy situation are presented in the Management Risk
Report which is prepared on & monthly basis. Thiz repor iz reviewsd in the Audit and Risk Management
Commities meatings, The Awdit and Risk Management Committee informs the Board of Admintsiration on a
quarierly basis through the Risk Profile and ICAAP Repor about the developments on the risk profile and capital
adequacy fopics,

The Audit and Risk Management Commilies and the upper management commitiees operale in acooodance wilh
the bank's overall risk policy and their powers are defined by the authosily delegated to them by the Board of
Sdminssiration. The Audit and Risk Management Commities is subordinated consuliative commities of the Board
of Administration and also fulfils the funclion of informing fo the Board of Adminisiration wilth ragard to Bank’s
exposure fo nsks. The decsons of the upper management committees are executive decisions, The relevant
operational areas are represented in each committee, 30 a3 to engure thal the vanous business lines and the risk
management funclion are closely connected,

Audil and Risk Managemeni Commitiee (ARMC)

The main duty of the ARMC iz 1o suppor the Board of Adminstration in engsuring that the bank maintains a risk
prafile within the limits defined by the Bank’s risk appetite. Accordingly, the ARMC reviews all the lopics
regarding the implemeniaiion of the policies, procedures and methods used in the managemend of credit risk
(inchuding counterparty risk), market risk (interest rale and foreign exchange risk}, liguidity risk {including funding
risk), operational risk {inchuding legal risk), reputational risk, risk associaled with the business (including strategic
risk), compliance rigk and the management of any other nsk categories that could become relevant for the bank’s
activity. ARMC monitors on a monthly basis the capital adequacy ratio, from the perspeciive of the regulalions in
force, as well as from the perspective of economic capital calculated for internal purposes. The Committes meats
an a monthly basis.

Cradil Risk Managemneard Commuitfes [CRWC)

The CRMC iz a manfloring and decision-making commillee whose main duty s to monitor developmenis and
trands in ha |lean portfolio and fo analyse them in relation to the risk appetite established for credil sk and,
whenever necessary, to approve cormeclive measures, The commilbes's meelings are held once per month, but i
may be convensd whenever netassary.

Operalional Rizk Managemend! Commities [PRCH

At a minimum, the agenda for the ordinary meelings of the OPRC must include the following topics: operaficnal
rigk exposure (as derived from the operational risk database) and reguired action plans in order o address
operational risk events, The assessment of the operational risk exposure also includes information security
elements and the rsks related to outsourced aclivities, The regular mesetings of the OPRC are held once a
month, but it may also be convened whanever required.

Azzel and Liabilty Management Committes (ALCO)

The ALCD agenda is different in accordance with the fype of mesting. During the monthly meetings the
commitiee addresses mainly isswes specific to the risk profile, lquidity risk, market risk, counterparty risk, FX rigk,
buginess risk and, to 8 certain exient, compliance risk. Duing its meelings the focus is on the short term liquidity
management. The committes can be convened in extracrdinary meeting whenever nEcessany,

AMLECFT Commiftes

The main objective of this commitbes is to monitor activilies from the area of "know-your-cusiomer” practices, he
prevantion and fight against money laundenng and terrorism financing. The decsions of the commilies ars
implemented by those depariments whose areas of actiily include measures decided by the commiltes. The
AMLECFT Commilles is convened whenever necessary, but af least on a quarerly basis.

Credit Risk

The management of credd gk |5 the responsibility of the Credit Risk Management Committes. The Credit Risk
Deparimant is responsible for the identification and the evaluation of the credd risk at client level, while the Risk
Management Depardment bears the same responsibiities at loan portfolio kevel. The Risk Management
Departrment, through a specalized cperational sbucture, namety Internal Control Unit, assesses the compliancs



of the conirolled compardments with the provisions of the Credi Risk Management Policy and Strategy and
lending procedures and the quality of the porifolio in the confrolied comparments,

The Bank's credit products have a low level of complexity, The Bank does nol engage in operations with financial
derivative mstrumants with its clients. Moreover, our iransparency sirategy with the clients ansures that they have
a good understanding of the obligations that appear from a loan contract, thus avoiding futwre problems at
repayment. The lending process as a whobe is designed 1o minimize e risk associated wilh mdividusl loans: the
credit analysis focuses on the customer's caeh flow, and only subsidiary on the collateralized asests; each loan is
analysed and approved by a credil commities; kbens are carefully mondored by loan officers, who bear
responsibility for their clients’ adherencs to the agreed repayment plans and to the scheduling of repayments in
manthly instalments. Al these measures are applied to the majodly of loan products, allowing problems 1o be
identified quickly. Loans in arrears are monitored by specialized staff, both on the keval of the branches and in the
head office, thus ensurng an appropriate level of collection of the overdus debts. When 2 loan becomes
irrecoverable on an amiable basis, the bank stars the execution process 1o ansune he recovery of the respechve
Igan collaterals.

On December 3151, 2017 the awverage amount of a loan from the ouistanding loan portfolio was EUR 35 081
(December 318t 2016 EUR 22 T87). The non-performing loan portfolio was 4 .59 % (December 31st 2016
6.28%) while Non-performing koans coverage ratio was 52.34% (December 315t 20718: 52.51%).

The Board of Administration establishes Bils for the Bank's exposure o credil risk, the compliance of which is
momitored by the Audit and Risk Management Commities and by the Credit Risk Management Commities, The
Bank's exposure Io counterpanry risk (ncluding ssuer nisk) & monitored by the Audit and Risk Management
Committes and the Assels and Liabilities Management Commities.

Market Risk

PraCredil Bank is exposed to foreign currency risk and inlerest rate risk, The managemenl of these risks is
performed by the Assets and Liabdibes Managemeni Committee. The Committee alsc monidors the limits
established by the Board of Administration far the exposure 1o these risks.

Foveign Cumency Risk

The Bank iz exposed to foreign curmency risk, carying out operations in foreign currencies, especially in Euro. In
arder io avoid the losses generated by the fucluation of the FX rates, the Bank adopled a strategy of closing the
cumency positicns on 8 daily basis. ProCredit Bank does not use dervatives for hedging purposes, choosing a
ghrategy for closing positions by minimising the currency mismatch between assels and liabilities. The curmency
posdion B moniored on a daily basis at the lewel of Teeasury Depariment, Treasury Back Office Unit and Risk
Management Deparment The monitoring resulls are submitted to the Assets and Lisbiities Management
Commillee [ALCO)

interes! Rale Risk

The bank aima to ensure that balamce sheet structure iz balanced across &l maturties. Interest rate rsk s
managed mainty using malurily gap analysis and scenanos analysis wivich measure the mpact of the market
inferest rates’ evolufion on the economic value of the Bank and on its P&L. The Bank's economic valus impact
ursder the assumplions of the Basel 1| slandard scenano does nol exceed, al any gven moment, 105 of the
Bank's capital.

The Bosrd of Administration establishes Emids for the Bank's exposure to market risks, whose complignce s
monilored by the Audil and Risk Management Commilles and by the Assels and Liabiliies Management
Committes.

Liquidity Risk {including Funding Risk])

The Bank's posifion regarding the liquidity risk & carefully mondored and anabysed, usually on a bi-monthly basis,
during the meetings of the Asseis and Lisbilifies Committess. The bquidity risk was miligated by the well-
diversified retall deposits,

The funding risk is a componeni of e liquidity sk which expresses lhe risk that the Bank will not dispose of
sufficient funds to finance the development of its own business. Throughout 2017, the Bank used the funding
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afiracied from ProCredit Holding / ProCredit Bank AG (Germany) and alse the funds abiracted from European
Investment Fund (EIF) under the JEREMIE programme. The Bank maintained a comfortable kevel of the loan
portfolio — deposits coverage ralio (B5% al the end of 2017). The customer deposits have a high granularity, the
Top 10 depositors representing approximately 1.3% of the total amounis atiracted from customers.

The Board of Administration establishes Emdls for the Bank's exposura to liquadity nsk, the complance of which is
monitored by the Audit and Risk Management Committee and by the Asseis and Liabilifies Managemeni
Commitiee.

Operational Risk

For monioring and controling the operational risk, ProCredit Bank maintaing an operalional rigk evenl dalabase
{RED") and it has established an Operational Fisk Management Commities, An imporiant component of the
management of this risk is represented by the continuous efforts made in order to increase the awareness of the
employees regarding this source of risk and o encourage them fo report the detected incidants.

The Bank also has an information securily policy and 3 business confinuily and recovery plan in case of disaster,
The monitoring and the management of the information securily incidents are performed by the Information
Securly Officer from Risk Management Depariment.

The Board of Admimistration estabishes imils for the Bank's axposure o operatonal risk, whose compliance is
monidored by the Audit and Risk Managemend Commities and by the Operalional Risk Management Commitbes,

Business Risk (including Strategic Risk)

The Bank considers the business risk (induding the strategic risk) as a significant risk because, following the
changes in the business environment in past years, mainly caused by the financial crisis, we have encountered
significant problems in achisving the business goals, In these circumstances, the Bank's Board of Admnisiralion
defined a targed risk profile for this risk, in order to ensure a betier conirod of the risk exposura.

The Board of Administration sels hmdls for the Bank’s exposure o business risk, whose compliance is monitored
by the Audit and Risk Management Committes and by the Assels and Liabilities Management Commilles

Compliance Risk, Reputational Risk, Legal Risk

The management of the compliance risk is performed in three commiltees of the Bank, The complance with the
financial covenants included in the refinancing contracts i monitored on a monthly basis in the ALCO meatings
(The Assels and Liabdibes Management Commilles), The risks related to money laundering and lerrorism activity
funding are managed by the Committes for Preventing Money Laundering and Terrorism Activity Funding, The
monitoring of the legislative regulations and of their implementiation is performed within the Operational Risk
Management Commillee. The organizational siruciure of the bank includes the Compliance Depardment which
has the robe of supporting the Bank's Managers in the efficient managemaent of compliance risk.

Cur reputation in the marked remains central to our success in raising deposiis and funds via the capitsl market
Cwr reputational risk is low ghven our commitment to ransparency and responsibility in every agpect of our
company policy and corporate culture. There were no significant negative events affecting owr reputation in 2017
Fitch Ratings reconfirmed the long-lerm individual rating of the bank {EBB-) considering the stable cutiook of our
business model.

&z of December 31, 2017 there was no significant kegal action fed against the Bank,

Internal Capital Adequacy Process

During 2017, the Bank continued fo develop its approach regarding the internal capital adequacy process. This
process is based on the assessmend, monitorng and infernal control of capital adequacy from two
complementary perspectives: determination, based on current and provisionad position, of the economic capital
meaded for covering each significant rigk and the use of economic capital calculation technigues in order io
calculate the addtional capital needed for the risks thal are underestimated or not covered by The regulalony
framewark,

The Board of Administration established through the Intemal Capilal Adequacy Assesament Process (ICAAP)
Palicy, limits both for the economic capital needed for each significant risk, and for the general limits for capital
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adeguacy, the compliance of these lmits being monthly monitored within the Audit and Risk Management
Commities.

During 2017 the Bank performed regular stress tests on the risk profile and capital adeguacy within the business
plarming process. The goal of this process is to assass the Bank's sxposure o signtficant risks, under alternative
conditions and fo ensure that in adwerse condilions we will confinus o observe the solvency Bmits and nsk

appetite
Outlook

In 2018, the bank will conbinua o fbous on s cona cliend groups, small and medium sized business clients and
will serve private clients with a focus on conveniend savings and fransactional services. The Bank aims o
become the preferred partnes for SMEs focusing on hagh quality in custormer care and analysis,

The main objective of the Bank is bullding sound and long term relalionships with business clients and o becomea
the “Hausbank” for small chenis and the main bank for medium clente. This desiderate implies observing and
senicing all clients' needs, not exclusively the loan side, The Bank's positioning of as a reliable partner for both
financing and banking services wifl trigger bath the development of loan and deposit portfolios from business
clients and the ncrease of fees and commissions income from fransaciions.

Regarding business clienis, the Bank will focus on businesses with a sfable, largely shock-resilient business
medel and & sound management structure. 11 s our comiciion that these clients valus an international and highly
speciglized bank on thair side. Moreover, the Bank sees the polential of developing strectural and long-term
business relaticnships with small and medum business chents, able to have & loan exposure  above EUR
50,000, The remaining very small business cliends, with [san exposure below EUR 50,000 will ol be aclively
targeted.

Togather with the intreduction of the new comprehensive banking senvices offer for private clients, which includes
both electronic services and trangactions and alfractive saving facilities that shall be marketed o the online
grvironment, the Bank's expectations for the folowing yvear is o increase ils private clients’ porifolio with clients
who appreciate a modem and forward-looking approach to banking and thet also have the potential 1o save and
o engage info a long-term business partnership with our Bank. To this end, the Bank will confinwe focusing on
imresting into technologies and development of digital solutions for providing sutomated, fast and modem
senvices 1o the clients while at the same time maintaining a high level of professional service through owr Client
advisars.

In arder to improve its competitiveness in the markes, the Bank has developed sirong and reliable partrerships
with the key players within the SME financing and development support sector: EIB and EIF {under CIF, Jeremie,
InnovFin and SME Inifiative programs) - external institutions who suppor the local SMESs,

From 2018 onwards, the Bank aims o presende the cumrent network structure and further improve processes in
crder o gain eficiency

The number of employess will be stable in 2018 and beyond, ProCredit Bank will confinue, Bke in the previous
years, 1o imaesl balh in lraining is stafl and in improving mbernal processes in ondes 1o ensura, on the ane hand,
business efficiency and competitiveness in the Romanian banking market, and on the other hand, hgh quatity
customer service, Building long-term relationships and the in-depth knowledge of the dienis’ nesds remain key b
achiaving these objactives.

Events after Report Date
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Chairperson of the Board of Administration
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